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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, TERRE HAUTE, INDIANA

We have audited the financial statements of lndiana State University (University), as of and forthe years ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2012. Our report includes a
reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditinq
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements
of the discretely presented component unit, as described in our report on the University's financial statements. This
report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control over financial reporting or
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reportinq

ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the University's internal control overfinancial reporting as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control over
financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in

internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditinq Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the University's Board of Trustees, management,
federal awarding agencies and passthrough entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties. ln accordance with lndiana Code 5-1 1-5-1 , this report is a part of the public
records of the State Board of Accounts and of the office examined.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS
October 18,2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WTH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT ANO MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WTH OMB CIRCULAR 4.133

TO: THE OFFICIALS OF INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, TERRE HAUTE, INDIANA

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of lndiana State University (Uni\rersity) with the types of compliance
requirements d$cribed in the
Suoolement that could have a direct and material efiect on each of the University's major frderal programs br
the year ended June 30, 2012. The University's major federal progftms are identified in the Summary of
Audito/s Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned costs. Compliance with
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major Heral programs is
the responsibility of the University's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
University's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audib contained in Govemment Auditino
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States. LocalGovemments. and Non-Profit Oroanizations. Those standards and OMB GircularA-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements refened b above that could have a direct and material efiect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes e)(amining, on a test basis, evidence about the University's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other prccedures as we considercd necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis forouropinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the Uni\rersity's compliance with those requirements.

ln our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the compliance Equiremenb
refened to above that could have a dircc't and material effec{ on each of ib major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2012. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed one instance of non-
compliance wi0r those requiremenE which is required to be reported in accordance with OMB CircularA-133
and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 20'12-1.

lnternal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Uni\rersity is responsible for establishing and maintaining efui\re intemal control
over compliance with requirements of la\rvs, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to Ederal programs.
ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the University's intemal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material efbci on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on intemal control
overcompliance in accordance with OMB CircularA-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
efiactiveness of the University's intemal control over complian@.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE !N ACCORDANCE WTH OMB CIRCULAR A.133
(Continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to pretent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A materia! weakness in internal contro! over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internalcontrolovercompliance such thatthere is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and conected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any defi-
ciencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
However, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a
significant deficiency as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item
2012-1. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal contro! over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of lndiana State University as of and for the years ended
June 30,2012 and 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2012 which contained an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financia! statements that collectively comprise the University's financial statements. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of FederalAwards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is

the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements orto the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the
schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The University's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
Corrective Action Plan. We did not audit the University's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the response.

This report is intended solely forthe information and use of the University's Board of Trustees, man-
agement, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties. ln accordance with lndiana Code 5-11-5-1, this report is a
part of the public records of the State Board of Accounts and of the office examined.

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS

-5-
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Pass-Through
Federal Entity (or Other) Total

Federal Grantor Agency/Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awards
Number Number Expended

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct Grant

Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants 84.007 296,159$               
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 425,529                 

 Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 7,818,726              
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 16,943,967            

 Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 63,330,038            

Total for Student Financial Assistance Cluster 88,814,419            

Direct Grant
TRIO Cluster

TRIO-Student Support Services 84.042 299,350                 
TRIO-Upward Bound 84.047 339,161                 
TRIO-McNair Post-Baccalaureate Achievement 84.217 232,159                 

Total for TRIO Cluster 870,670                 

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 89,685,089            

Research and Development Cluster

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Direct Grant

Wildlife Services 10.028 Various 43,424                   
Forestry Research 10.652 11-JV-11330134-023 103,171                 

Pass-Through University of Toledo
Grants for Agricultural Research, Special Research Grants 10.200 2010-38897-21205 25,677                   

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 172,272                 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Pass-Through University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

Sea Grant Support 11.417 NA060AR4170079 885                        

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 885                        

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Direct Grants

Cultural Resource Management 15.224 L08AC13787 (2,400)                    
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance 15.608 Various 23,317                   

Pass-Through Indiana University
State Wildlife Grants 15.634 E2-08-WDS13 65,263                   

Pass-Through Purdue University
Assistance to State Water Resources Research Institutes 15.805 06HQGR0084 (1,122)                    

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 85,058                   

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION
Direct Grants

Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 CHE-1012629 57,616                   
Geosciences 47.050 Various 160,904                 
Biological Sciences 47.074 IOS-1052247 99,128                   
Social, Behavioral, and Economic Sciences 47.075 Various 66,677                   
Education and Human Resources 47.076 DUE-0966219 30,000                   
Polar Programs 47.078 ANT-0636474 19,041                   
ARRA - Trans - NSF Recovery Act Research Support 47.082 Various 1,301,431              

Cluster Title/Program Title/Project Title

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Pass-Through

Federal Entity (or Other) Total

Federal Grantor Agency/Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awards
Number Number Expended

Research and Development Cluster (continued)
NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION (continued)

Pass-Through Tuskegee University

Education and Human Resources 47.076 DUE-1102997 32,932                   

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 1,767,729              

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Direct Grant

Great Lakes Program 66.469 GL-00E00626-0 180,636                 

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 180,636                 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Direct Grant

Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 81.049 DE-FG02-06ER46304 95,786                   

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 95,786                   

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Grants

Research and Training in Complementary and Alternative Medicine 93.213 5U01AT002550-04 1,654                     
Cancer Biology Research 93.396 Various (7,477)                    
ARRA - Trans-NIH Recovery Act Research Support 93.701 Various 216,736                 

Pass-Through University of Southern California, San Francisco
Research and Training in Complementary and Alternative Medicine 93.213 1P01 AT005013-01 21,659                 

Pass-Through The Ohio State University Research Foundation
ARRA - Trans-NIH Recovery Act Research Support 93.701 R21DK084330 4,973                     

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 237,546                 

Total for Research and Development Cluster 2,539,911              

Other Federal Awards

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Pass-Through Indiana Department of Education
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 None Provided 124,608                 

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 124,608                 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Pass-Through Indiana Department of Workforce Development
Trade Adjustment Assistance 17.245 C1-10-TAA-62626-20665 9,674                     

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 9,674                     

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Pass-Through Indiana Criminal Justice Institute
Highway Safety Cluster

Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasure Incentive Grants I 20.601 OP-10-02-02-07 501                        

Total for Highway Safety Cluster 501                        

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 501                        

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION
Pass-Through Purdue University

Unknown 43.xxx NNG05GG54H 13,500                   

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 13,500                   

Cluster Title/Program Title/Project Title

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Pass-Through
Federal Entity (or Other) Total

Federal Grantor Agency/Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awards
Number Number Expended

Other Federal Awards (continued)

NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS

Pass-Through Indiana State Library

Grants to States 45.310 Various 16,710                   

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 16,710                   

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION
Direct Grant

ARRA -  Trans-NSF Recovery Act Research Support 47.082 DUE-0934648 101,009                 

Pass-Through Purdue University
Education and Human Resources 47.076 HRD-0703443 49,785                   

Pass-Through Harrisburg University

Education and Human Resources 47.076 0717407 1,449                     

Total for Program 51,234                   

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 152,243                 

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
Direct Grant

Special Initiative 59.000 Various 31,256                   

Pass-Through Indiana Small Business Administration
Small Business Development Centers 59.037 Various 158,499                 

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 189,755                 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Pass-Through Indiana Department of Education

Special Education Cluster
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 Various 1,406,668            

Pass-Through Indiana University
Special Education Cluster

Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 Various 164,030                 

Total for Special Education Cluster 1,570,698              

Pass-Through Indiana Department of Education
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Cluster

ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - Education State Grants, Recovery Act 84.394 S394A090015 1,141,906              

Total for State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Cluster 1,141,906              

Direct Grants
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education 84.116 P116P110007 10,000                 
Fund for the Improvement of Education 84.215 Various 51,368                 
Special Education - Technical Assistance and Dissemination
      to Improve Services and Results for Children with Disabilities 84.326 H326C080017 232,188               
Child Care Access Means Parents in School (B) 84.335 P335A100289 59,547                 

Pass-Through Ball State University
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 A58-1-11CI-153 2                          

Pass-Through Indiana Department of Education
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs 84.334 Various 216,167               

Pass-Through Indiana Commission for Higher Education
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 10-06 153,662               

(Continued)

Cluster Title/Program Title/Project Title

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Pass-Through
Federal Entity (or Other) Total

Federal Grantor Agency/Pass-Through Entity CFDA Identifying Federal Awards
Number Number Expended

Other Federal Awards (continued)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (continued)
Pass-Through Mental Health America of Indiana

Unknown 84.xxx None Provided 1,314                     

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 3,436,852              

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Grant

Advanced Nursing Education Traineeships 93.358 A10HP00183 61,551                 

Pass-Through Purdue University
Injury Prevention and Control Research and State and Community Based Programs 93.136 Various 2,515                   

Pass-Through Mental Health America of Vigo County
93.243 None Provided 15,964                 

Pass-Through Indiana University
Area Health Education Centers Point of Service Maintenance and Enhancement Awards 93.107 HRSA-11-034 49,481                   

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 129,512                 

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
Pass-Through State of Indiana - Office of Faith Based & Community Initiatives

AmeriCorps 94.006 Various 149,945                 

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 149,945                 

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Pass-Through American Council on Education

Cooperative Development Program (CDP) 98.002 HNE-A-00-97-00059-00 1,791                     

Total for Federal Grantor Agency 1,791                     

Total federal awards expended 96,450,090$          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Cluster Title/Program Title/Project Title

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National 

(Continued)
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
 
 
Note 1. Basis of Presentation 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
grant activity of Indiana State University (University) and is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations.  Accordingly, the amount of federal awards expended is based on when the activity 
related to the award occurs. 
 
The purpose of the Schedule is to present a summary of those activities of the University for the 
year ended June 30, 2012, which have been financed by the U.S. Government (federal awards).  
For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all federal assistance and procurement 
relationships entered into directly between the University and the federal government and sub-
awards from nonfederal organizations made under federally sponsored agreements.  The Schedule 
presents only a selective portion of the activities of the University, therefore, it is not intended to and 
does not present the financial position, change in financial position, or cash flows of the University. 
 
 

Note 2. Federal Direct Student Loans 
 
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes Federal Direct Student Loans which were 
not made by the University but were received by its students.  The University is responsible only for 
the performance of certain administrative duties with respect to these loans. 
 
The number of guaranteed loans and the total amount processed for each Direct Loan Program for 
the year ended June 30, 2012, were as follows:   
 

Number of 
Program Title Students Loan Amount

Direct Loan Program (Subsidized and Unsubsidized) 5,859             51,732,046$   
Direct PLUS Loans (Parent (PLUS) and Graduate PLUS Loans) 1,348             11,597,992     

Totals 7,207             63,330,038$   
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

(Continued) 
 
 
Note 3. Federal Perkins Student Loan Program 

 
The University participates in the Federal Perkins Loan Program.  A revolving loan fund is main-
tained for the administration of the Program, the balances and transactions relating to the program 
are included in the University's financial statements.  The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards includes the entire amount of the revolving loan fund including the outstanding loans to 
students.  The following schedule represents loans outstanding as of June 30, 2012: 
 

 
 
Note 4. Subrecipients 
 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the University provided federal awards to 
subrecipients as follows for the year ended June 30, 2012: 
 
                     Federal 
          CFDA 
    Program Title             Number              Amount     
 
Social, Behavioral, and Economic Sciences   47.075  $       8,352 
Special Initiative      59.000         18,628 
Special Education – Grants to States    84.027       525,166 

   Research and Training in Complementary and 
  Alternative Medicine     93.213         67,108 
   ARRA – Trans-NIH Recovery Act Research  
    Support       93.701         10,279 

Federal 
Program Title CFDA Number Amount

Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 7,818,726$     
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 
 
 

Section I – Summary of Auditor's Results 
 

Financial Statements: 
 

Type of auditor's report issued:  Unqualified 
 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses identified? no 
Significant deficiencies identified? none reported 

 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? no 

 
Federal Awards: 
 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weaknesses identified? no 
Significant deficiencies identified? yes 
 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? yes 
 

Identification of Major Programs:  

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:  $759,811 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes   
 

 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
 No matters are reportable. 
  

CFDA
Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Various Student Financial Aid Cluster
Various Research and Development Cluster
Various ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Cluster
Various Special Education Cluster
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

(Continued) 
 
 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs    
 
FINDING 2012-1 - COUNSELING BORROWERS 
  
Federal Agency:  Department of Education 
Federal Program:  Student Financial Aid Cluster 
CFDA Number:  Various 
Federal Award Number and Year (or Other Identifying Number):  N/A 
Pass-Through Entity:  N/A 
 
 
 The school does not have internal control procedures to ensure exit counseling is conducted for each 
Direct Subsidized Loan or Direct Unsubsidized Loan borrower and graduate or professional student Direct 
PLUS Loan borrower.  Exit counseling was not performed for 95% of the 21 borrowers sampled. 
 
 OMB Circular A-133, Subpart C, section .300 (b) states: 
 

"The auditee shall:  (b) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides reasonable 
assurance that the auditee is managing Federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, 
and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on each of 
its Federal programs." 

 
 34 CFR 685.304 (b) states in part: 
 

"Exit counseling.  (1) A school must ensure that exit counseling is conducted with each Direct 
Subsidized Loan or Direct Unsubsidized Loan borrower and graduate or professional student 
Direct PLUS Loan borrower shortly before the student borrower ceases at least half-time study at 
the school." 

 
 Management of the Office of Student Financial Aid has not established an effective internal control 
system related to the grant agreement and all of the compliance requirements that have a direct and material 
effect to the program.  An internal control system should be designed and operate effectively to provide 
reasonable assurance that material noncompliance with the grant agreement, or a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will be prevented, detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
 
 The failure to establish an effective internal control system places the University at risk of noncom-
pliance with the grant agreement, the compliance requirements, and could allow the misuse and mismanage-
ment of federal funds and assets by not having proper oversight, reviews, and approvals over the activities of 
the grant.  Noncompliance could result in the loss of federal funds to the University. 
 
 We recommended that the University management establish and maintain internal controls that 
provide reasonable assurance of compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements that have a direct and material effect to the program. 
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

 
 
 No matters are reportable. 



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Federal Agency:  Department of Education 
Federal Program:  Student Financial Aid Cluster 
CFDA Number:  Various 
Federal Award Number and Year (or Other Identifying Number):  N/A 
Pass-Through Entity:  N/A 
 

 

March 6, 2013 

Corrective	Action	Plan	
 
FINDING 2012-1 - COUNSELING BORROWERS 
 
Auditee Contact Person: Crystal Baker 
Title of Contact Person: Director of Financial Aid 
Phone Number: (812) 237-7717 
Expected Completion Date: May 3, 2013 
 

34 CFR 685.304 (b) states the following: 
Exit counseling. (1) A school must ensure that exit counseling is conducted with each Direct Subsidized 
Loan or Direct Unsubsidized Loan borrower and graduate or professional student Direct PLUS Loan 
borrower shortly before the student borrower ceases at least half-time study at the school. 
 
ISU did not satisfactorily distribute exit counseling materials to students who graduated, dropped below 
half-time enrollment, unofficially withdrew, or otherwise did not re-enroll at ISU. For Fall 2011 going 
forward, ISU has developed the following steps for distributing exit counseling materials to Direct Loan 
borrowers:  
 

- Implement an automated Banner process that spools every 30 days to place a requirement hold 
onto student accounts for Direct Loan Exit Counseling. This will auto-generate emails and a 
paper letter to borrowers.  

- Implement the NSLDS Enrollment and Repayment notification process at the end of each 
semester in order to satisfy the requirement. 

- Ensure separation of duties by dividing process oversight between the Systems Manager and the 
Associate Director. 
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INDIANA STATE UNIVERSITY 
EXIT CONFERENCE  

 
 

 The contents of this report were discussed on March 6, 2013.  Those attending were: 
 
 University Representatives: 
 
  Dr. Daniel J. Bradley, President of the University 
  Bob Baesler, Trustee 
  Diann E. McKee, Vice President for Business Affairs, Finance, and University Treasurer 
  Domenic Nepote, Associate Vice President for Finance and Assistant Treasurer 

  Jeffrey J. Jacso, Associate Vice President and University Controller 
  John Beacon, Vice President of Enrollment Management, Marketing & Communications 
  Richard Toomey, Assistant Vice President of Enrollment Management 
  Sarah Ber, Director, Office of Contracts and Grants 
  Crystal Baker, Director, Office of Student Financial Aid 
  Charlene Shivers, Associate Director, Office of Student Financial Aid 
 

State Board of Accounts Representatives: 
 

 Jeffrey Arthur, College and University Audit Supervisor 
 Laura Ping, Field Examiner 

 Katie Elliott, Field Examiner 







2011-2012 Financial Report

1  

Table of Contents

Message from the President............................................................................................................. 2

Independent Auditor’s Report......................................................................................................... 3

Management’s Discussion and Analysis...................................................................................... 4

Indiana State University, Comparative Statement of Net Assets......................................18

Indiana State University Foundation, Inc. and Affiliate, 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.........................................................................19

Indiana State University, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Assets......................................................................................................................20

Indiana State University Foundation, Inc. and Affiliate, 

Consolidated Statement of Activities.........................................................................................21

Indiana State University, Statement of Cash Flows................................................................22

Indiana State University Foundation, Inc. and Affiliate, 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows......................................................................................23

Notes to Financial Statements.......................................................................................................24

Home Counties of Indiana State Students................................................................................44

Board of Trustees and University Administration..................................... Inside back cover



2  

Greetings on behalf of the Trustees, Faculty, Administration, and Students 
of Indiana State University

	 In a time when governmental leaders must balance public needs and the best allocation of tax-
generated resources, Indiana State University remains committed to responsible stewardship of support 
from Indiana taxpayers.  As more students from Indiana and elsewhere seek the benefits of an under-
graduate education and degree, we remain conscious both of limited resources and the demands to 
provide a high-quality 21st century education to our students.
	 This financial report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, reflects Indiana State University’s com-
mitment to meeting those challenging objectives.  Our campus continues to develop in many ways 
with unprecedented growth in enrollments, high-quality renovations to our facilities and greater use 
of technology to enrich our students’ educational experiences.
	 During the past year, Indiana State has completed two significant building renovations. Federal 
Hall, which formerly housed federal offices, provides an impressive new home for the Scott College of 
Business. Across campus, another renovation has created the John W. Moore Welcome Center which 
provides a central location for guests and prospective students to learn about the great things taking 
place at Indiana State.
	 Investments also have been made to advance the goals of “The Pathway to Success” strategic plan 
including developing programs to improve student success, increase opportunities for experiential learn-
ing and community service, build centers of excellence through our Unbounded Possibilities program, 
diversify revenue sources and attract and retain great faculty and staff.
	 In these pages you will find the Financial Statements with accompanying Notes, the Independent 
Auditor’s Report, and the Management Discussion and Analysis.  These statements were prepared in 
accordance with guidelines established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and 
were audited by the State Board of Accounts.
	 You will note that the financial statements for the Indiana State University Foundation are included 
as a component unit of the University in accordance with GASB Statement No. 39.  This additional data 
is included to provide a broader and more comprehensive 
analysis of the University’s financial position.
	 We are deeply grateful to the State of Indiana for the 
support it provides to Indiana State University, and we are 
ever mindful of our responsibilities to students, faculty, staff, 
citizens, and the Indiana General Assembly to manage with 
prudence that financial support.

Sincerely,

Daniel J. Bradley
President, Indiana State University

Message from the President
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Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis
Introduction
	 The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of 
Indiana State University (the University) for the 2011-2012 fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This overview 
complies with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) principles, GASB Statement No. 35, Basic 
Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities, as 
amended by GASB Statements Nos. 37 and 38.
	 Also presented is selected comparative information for the 2010-2011 fiscal year. This discussion has been 
prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes 
that follow this section.
	 Indiana State University is a research intensive, residential institution offering instruction at the associate, 
bachelor’s, master’s, and doctoral levels. The University offers a diverse range of degree programs through a 
framework of 43 departmental units in seven colleges and various divisions. Located in Terre Haute, Indiana, 
with 11,528 students, Indiana State University is a significant economic engine for the Wabash Valley and the 
State of Indiana. 
	 Indiana State University’s impact on the state economy exceeded $500 million per year according to a 
study conducted by Thomas P. Miller and Associates. The study found a $309.3 million direct University-related 
impact during fiscal year 2011 in the Wabash Valley and a $518.6 million total impact statewide. University-
related expenditures support a total of 5,020 jobs statewide with 4,200 of those jobs in the Terre Haute region.

Minas Center for Investment and Financial Education
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Financial Highlights
	 The University’s financial position continues to be strong, with an increase in net assets of $28.4 million 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. This continues a trend of solid financial performance and adds to 
the increase of $29.6 million in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. 
	 Operating revenues for the fiscal year were $109.4 million, as compared to $100.1 million for fiscal year 
2011, an increase of 9 percent over the previous year. Tuition and fees and auxiliary income were up $6.1 
million and $4.8 million to reflect enrollment growth and the second largest incoming freshmen class in 
the school’s history. Grants and contracts revenue decreased by $0.3 million and other operating revenues 
decreased by $1.3 million.
	 Other operating revenues of $5.6 million include $1.7 million from the Lilly Endowment, Inc., administered 
through the Indiana State University Foundation for the establishment of the Networks Financial Institute 
(NFI). The funds are currently held by Indiana State University on behalf of the Foundation and are recorded 
as current and non-current liabilities as funds held in custody for others (see Note 13). The Lilly Foundation 
has contributed a total of $29 million to the ISU Foundation to be invested in NFI. These funds are used to 
support three areas in the financial services sector:  public policy and research in insurance and other finan-
cial services, financial literacy, and professional development for top financial services students in the Scott 
College of Business.
	 Operating expenses were $200.3 million for fiscal year 2012. This represents a $7.1 million increase from 
the previous year’s expenditures. Compensation and employee benefit expense increased by $0.4 million, 
reflecting a 3 percent midyear salary increase as well as an increase in medical benefit expense. This was offset 
by an increase in the Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) of $4 million for 2012 resulting in a reduction of 
compensation expense. Supplies and Expenses grew by $5.6 million. This reflects increases in expenses for 
the Correction Department training program, room and board payments, and team travel. Utilities expenses 
increased by $0.5 million due to rate increases. 
	 Net non-operating revenues and expenses increased by $1.3 million from 2011. State appropriations 
decreased by $4.6 million as the State continued reducing support to the University due to the challenging 
economic environment. This reduction of support was offset by a $4.1 million growth of interest income 
as the new University investment policy was fully implemented during the year, and the investment fund 
manager provided excellent returns. Additionally, other non-operating revenues increased by $1.4 million 
as a result of smaller asset write-offs on renovation projects. 
	 The State of Indiana did not provide funds for repair and rehabilitation due to shortfalls in state revenues. 
Indiana State University did receive $1.2 million of federal stimulus funds (ARRA) through the State of Indiana 
that were used to replace repair and rehabilitation funding. Capital grants and gifts totaling $2.3 million were 
recognized for the year. This included a $1.5 million grant from the National Science Foundation (NSF) for 
renovation of science labs and a $0.2 million gift for the renovation of dietetics labs.

Using the Financial Statements 
	 The University’s financial report includes three financial statements:  (1) the Statement of Net Assets; (2) 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; and (3) the Statement of Cash Flows. 
	 The Statement of Net Assets provides a summary view of the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the Uni-
versity and classifies assets and liabilities as either current or non-current. Current assets include those that 
may be used to support regular ongoing operations, such as cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, 
and inventories. Current liabilities are those items which are estimated to become due and payable within 
the next fiscal year. Non-current assets include capital assets, certain receivables, and long-term investments. 
Non-current liabilities include long-term bonds and notes payable. 
	 The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets summarizes financial performance for 
the year and explains the changes in the year-end net assets on the Statement of Net Assets. 
	 The Statement of Cash Flows reconciles the beginning and ending balances of cash and cash equivalents, 
and identifies all sources and uses of cash during the fiscal year.
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	 The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires the inclusion of financial statements for 
all significant University component units. As of June 30, 2012 the Indiana State University Foundation is the 
only component unit to be included. The Foundation is a nonprofit organization that is subject to report-
ing guidelines governed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB); accordingly, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from established GASB standards. No modifica-
tions have been made to the Indiana State University Foundation’s financial information in the University’s 
financial reporting presentation for these differences.

Statement of Net Assets
	 The Statement of Net Assets presents the financial position of the University at the end of the fiscal year 
and includes all assets and liabilities of the University. The difference between total assets and total liabilities 
is the net assets, which is one measure of the financial condition of the University. Changes in net assets 
are an indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or declined during the year. Assets 
and liabilities are generally measured at historical values in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. One notable exception is investments, which are recorded at fair market value as of the date of 
the financial statements. A summarized comparison of the University’s assets, liabilities, and net assets at 
June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Statement of Net Assets (in millions)
				  
			   2012	 2011
	
Current assets	 $	 42.6	 $	 73.9
Non-current assets:	
	 Deposits with bond trustee		  0.4		  0.5
	 Notes receivable		  4.5		  4.6
	 Other long-term investments		  106.7		  79.9
	 Net OPEB asset		  11.1		  7.1
	 Capital assets, net		  350.8		  327.0
	 Other 		  0.5		  0.5
	    Total assets	 $	516.6	 $	493.5
	
Current liabilities		  26.0		  29.3
Non-current liabilities		  112.8		  114.8
 	    Total liabilities	 $	138.8	 $	144.1
	
Net assets	 $	377.8	 $	349.4

Assets
	 Current assets consist primarily of cash, operating investments, and accounts receivable. Non-current 
assets consist primarily of capital assets net of depreciation, long-term investments, notes receivable net of 
allowance, and the net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) asset. Current and non-current assets totaled 
$42.6 million and $474 million, respectively, at June 30, 2012, compared to $73.9 million and $419.6 million 
at June 30, 2011. Total assets increased by 5 percent or  $23.1 million. Key changes in assets were as follows:
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•	 Cash and cash equivalents (which include liquid investments maturing within 90 days) and short-term 
investments decreased by $31 million, while long-term investments increased by $26.8 million, which 
resulted in an overall decrease in cash and investments of $4.2 million. A majority of the liquid invest-
ments classified as cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments held as of June 30, 2011 were 
converted to long-term investments in fiscal year 2012. In addition, $4 million of cash and cash equivalent 
CD’s held at June 30, 2011 matured, and the proceeds were used for the renovation of Federal Hall for the 
Scott College of Business.

•	 Accounts receivable increased by $1.3 million and other accounts receivable decreased by $2 million. The 
decrease in other accounts receivable is a result of payments toward a gift receivable by the ISU Founda-
tion used for the renovation of Federal Hall.

•	 The net OPEB asset increased by $4 million to reflect changes in the actuarial valuation caused by an 
increase in the plan participants’ share of cost to 33.3 percent over the next five years.

•	 Capital assets grew by $23.8 million. This growth reflects the completion of the Pickerl Hall renovation, 
the science lab renovations, the renovation of the Federal Hall for use by the Scott College of Business, the 
renovation of the new John W. Moore Student Welcome Center, and the purchase of a parking garage.

Liabilities
	 Current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued compensation, deferred revenue, and the current 
portions of the deferred inflow of resources and long-term debt. Non-current liabilities consist primarily of 
the non-current portions of the deferred inflow of resources and long-term debt and advances from the 
federal government. Current liabilities decreased by $3.3 million, while non-current liabilities decreased by 
$2 million, for an overall decrease in total liabilities of 4 percent or $5.3 million. This decrease is due to the 
following:
•	 Accrued payroll and deductions decreased from $4.2 million in 2011 to $2.9 million in 2012.
•	 A total deferred inflow of resources of $2.2 million was added related to the Service Concession Arrange-

ment between the University and Sodexo (see Note 7 for details). This arrangement provided for the 
renovation of the Sycamore Banquet Center.

•	 Funds held in custody for others decreased by $1.8 million. This reflects the portion of funds held for the 
ISU Foundation for use by the Networks program that were expensed in fiscal year 2012.

Newly installed campus artwork, “ISU Sphere”
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•	 Total bonds payable decreased from $111.6 million in 2011 to $108.2 million in 2012. This $3.4 million 
change reflects the addition of the $4 million Parking System Revenue bond, Series 2012, for the purchase 
of the parking garage and the payment of $7.4 million in bond principal during the fiscal year.

Capital and Debt Activities
	 An important element in the continuing quality of academic programs, research activities, and student 
residential life is the sustained commitment to the development and renewal of the University’s capital as-
sets. The University continues to implement its Campus Master Plan with new construction, renovation, and 
modernization of existing facilities. Please refer to Note 4 in the Financial Statement Notes for activities in 
capital assets, including additions and deletions of capital assets in the current fiscal year.
	 In March 2012, Indiana State University purchased a 626-space parking garage at 7th and Cherry Streets 
for $4.85 million. The University had entered into a long-term ground lease with the city of Terre Haute for 
the construction of a combination bus transfer/garage facility. Construction finished in 2008, with partial 
funding from the Federal Transportation Authority, who then granted the City authority to transfer the facil-
ity’s garage portion to Indiana State University. This addition will satisfy the parking needs for students near 
the Scott College of Business. The purchase was financed by $4 million from Parking System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012, with the remaining $0.85 million from parking system reserves.
	 Indiana State University’s Scott College of Business has a new home for the fall 2012 semester. The former 
Terre Haute Post Office and Federal Building was renovated to accommodate the College. Federal Hall, a 1930’s 
art deco building, received a $14.6 million renovation. Many of the traditional art deco elements of the era 
were preserved and restored, from the judge’s library and the elaborate finishes on the elevator doors to the 
former federal courtroom. The building is listed on the National Register of Historic Places. The project was 
funded with $8.5 million of Series O Bond proceeds and the remainder from private gifts.
	 The new John W. Moore Welcome Center, named in honor of the University’s ninth president, was dedicated 
in August 2012. Located in the former Family and Consumer Sciences Building, the Moore Welcome Center 
serves as the “front door” of the University. The $3 million renovation of the 22,000-square foot building is 
designed as a living room that features 11 interactive transparent screens students and visitors can use to 
learn about the University’s history, academic programs, and services. The Moore Welcome Center houses 
the Office of Admissions, New Student Transitions Program, Testing Office, Scholarship Office, the Veterans’ 
Services Office, and a Financial Aid Office. 
	 A $1.5 million National Science Foundation grant allowed the University to update seven research labs 
in the Science Building. The ongoing research in the labs ranges from understanding animal behavior in 
white-throated sparrow populations 
and examining single-celled organ-
isms in newly discovered ecosystems 
to isolating novel compounds that 
show interesting biological activity 
from poison frogs. These labs also will 
be put into use during the Summer 
Undergraduate Research Experience, 
where undergraduates have the op-
portunity to work alongside professors 
to conduct experiments.
	 In February 2011, Indiana State 
University extended the contract with 
Sodexo to provide food service op-
erations on the campus. As part of the 
contract extension, Sodexo invested 
$2.9 million in a new banquet center, 
with the capability to seat 460, as well 
as a kitchen upgrade. The Sycamore 
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Net Assets (in millions)

			   2012	 2011	
	
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt	 $ 241.5 	 $ 222.9    
	 Restricted			 
	 Non-expendable	 2.7 	 2.8
	 Expendable	 4.1 	 13.0 

Unrestricted  	 129.5	 110.7	
				  
	 Total net assets	 $ 377.8	 $ 349.4

Banquet Center became operational in April 2012. This new banquet facility will serve both the needs of the 
University as well as the community. 
	 Indiana State University was a sub-recipient for approximately $6 million through the State of Indiana from 
federal stimulus funds (ARRA). These funds were required to be spent for repair and replacement projects and 
be obligated by September 30, 2011. The University has completed ten projects utilizing these funds. This 
includes the Rankin/Parsons Hall Plaza in which the existing roofing systems were replaced with a roof deck 
with structural reinforcement and insulation. Existing brick pavers were replaced with a sustainable green 
roof and appropriate drainage, lighting, and native planting. Other projects completed include the Chestnut 
Street Pedestrian Walkway, Holmstedt Hall Plaza, Student Success Center, roof repairs, HVAC upgrades, fire 
alarm upgrades, and masonry repairs. 
	 The renovation of Erickson Hall began in May 2012. Originally constructed in 1960 as a residence hall facility, 
the renovation will provide a total of 260 beds, all contained in double occupancy rooms with lounge/study 
space on each floor. Office space for Residential Life and Dining Services will be included on the first floor. 
The overall cost of the Erickson Hall renovation project is estimated at $10 million, of which approximately 
$1 million will be funded from Housing and Dining System reserves and approximately $9 million from Series 
2012 Bonds. The University will issue Indiana State University Housing and Dining System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012, in the fall 2012 for both Erickson Hall and the new North Housing project described below. The 
Erickson Hall renovation project is expected to be completed for fall 2013 occupancy. 
	 The University continues to work assertively to manage its financial resources efficiently, including the 
issuance of debt to finance capital projects. Indiana State University Housing and Dining System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010, and Indiana State University Student Fee Bonds, Series O, issued during fiscal year 2011 
both had underlying credit ratings of (A1) from Moody’s and (AA-) from Fitch. 

Net Assets
	 Net assets represent the residual value of the University’s assets after liabilities are deducted. The Univer-
sity’s net assets at June 30, 2012 and 2011 are summarized in the table that follows:   

	 Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, reflects the University’s capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt, attributable to the acquisition, con-
struction or improvement of these assets.
	 Restricted net assets are subject to externally imposed restrictions governing their use. Restricted non-
expendable net assets are funds held for scholarships and fellowships. Restricted expendable net assets include 
funds for research and funds limited to construction and renovation. The restricted portion of long-term debt 
and debt service is made up of reserves mandated by the bond agreements, which state that reserves must 
be maintained until the issue is retired. 
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	 Although unrestricted net assets are not subject to externally imposed stipulations, all of the University’s 
unrestricted net assets have been internally designated for various ongoing needs of the University, including 
debt service, capital projects, University initiatives, benefit claims, technology improvements, and academic 
and administrative activities. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Assets
	 The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets present the University’s results of opera-
tions for the identified fiscal year periods. A summarized comparison of the University’s revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:  

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets (in millions)
				  
			    2012   	 2011	
Operating revenues	
	
	 Tuition and fees (net of scholarship and other allowances 
		  of$32.8 million for 2012 and$34.0 million for 2011) 	 $	 58.2 	 $	 52.1 
	
	 Grants and contracts		  8.2 		  8.5 
	 Auxiliary enterprises fees and services (net of	
		  scholarship and other allowances of$8.7 million 		
		  for 2012 and$8.7 million for 2011)		  37.4		  32.6	

	 Other		  5.6 		  6.9
Total operating revenue	 $	109.4 	 $	 100.1
	
Operating expenses		  (200.3)		  (193.2)
	 Operating loss	 ($	   90.9)	 ($	 93.1)
	
Non-operating revenues (expenses)	
	 State appropriations		  76.5 		  81.1   
	 Investment income (net of investment expenses of	
		  $0.4 million for 2012 and$0.2 million for 2011)		  7.6 		  3.5 
	 Non-operating grants and contract revenue		  31.8		  31.4
	 Capital appropriations		  1.2 		  3.5  
	 Capital grants and gifts		  2.3 		  6.1
	 Other non-operating revenues and expenses		  4.6		  3.0     
	
Interest on capital asset related debt		  (4.7)		  (4.5)
Net non-operating and other revenues	 $	119.3 	 $	 124.1 
	
Change in accounting estimate		  —		  (1.4)
Increase in net assets	 $	 28.4 	 $	   31.0  
Net assets, beginning of year	 $	349.4	 $	 319.8
Net assets, end of year	 $	377.8 	 $	 349.4

	 One of the University’s greatest strengths is its diverse stream of revenues that supplement student fees, 
including voluntary private support from individuals, foundations, and corporations, along with government 
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Other non-operating/capital revenues

Investment income

State appropriations

Other operating revenues

Auxiliary enterprises fees and 	
services, net

Federal, state, and local grants 
and contracts

Tuition and fees, net

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

	 $ 	 5,602,341

	 $ 	37,408,359

	 $ 	 8,144,984

	 $ 	58,243,769

	 $ 	 6,917,478

	 $ 	32,628,512

	 $ 	 8,525,365

	 $ 	52,077,126

	 $ 	39,920,397

	 $ 	 7,614,716

	 $ 76,475,333

	 $ 	44,281,235

	 $ 	 3,542,761

	 $ 	81,125,835

___________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________

$	 37,408,359

$ 	 58,243,769

$	 5,602,341

$	 8,144,984

$	 76,475,333

$	 44,281,235

$	 81,125,835

$	 3,542,761
$	 32,628,512

$ 	 52,077,126

$	 6,917,478

$	 8,525,365

$	 39,920,397

$	 7,614,716

and other sponsored programs, state appropriations, and investment income. To supplement student tuition 
the University will continue to aggressively seek funding from all possible sources consistent with its mission 
and will direct the financial resources realized from these efforts to fund University operating priorities. 
	 The following is a comparative graphic illustration of revenues by source (both operating and non-oper-
ating), which are used to fund the University’s ongoing activities. As the following chart indicates, tuition and 
state appropriations remain the primary sources of funding for the University’s academic programs. It should 
be noted that significant recurring sources of the University’s revenues, including state appropriations, are 
considered non-operating revenues. 
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$20,000,000
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Revenues by Source (operating and non-operating)

	 Operating revenues increased by $9.3 million for the fiscal year 2012. The following attributed to the 
increase:  
•	 Tuition and fee income grew by $6.1 million. Indiana State University’s fall 2011 incoming freshmen class 

of 2,521 is the second largest in the school’s history. Overall head count grew by 34, despite a drop in the 
corrections education program from 469 students in fall 2010 to 105 students in fall 2011. The state cor-
rection education program is being transferred away from four-year universities. The increase also reflects 
a 3.5 percent increase in tuition rates.

•	 Auxiliary enterprises fees and services revenue increased by $4.8 million. This reflects both a 3 percent 
increase in housing and dining rates as well as growth in student enrollment. Additional revenues 
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associated with athletic 
event admissions and the 
physical therapy and sports 
rehabilitation outpatient 
clinic fees also contributed 
to this growth.

•	 Grants and contracts rev-
enue decreased by $0.3 
million for the fiscal year 
2012. 

•	 Other operating revenues 
decreased by $1.3 million 
due to a reduction of ISU 
Networks activity for fiscal 
year 2012.

•	 Non-operating revenues 
increased $1.3 million for 
2012. Growth of $4.1 mil-
lion in investment income 
resulting from higher inter-
est rates and fully imple-
menting the University’s 
investment policy, along 
with increased other non-
operating revenues and expenses of $1.6 million due to smaller asset write-offs on renovation projects, 
were offset by the state appropriation reduction of $4.6 million. The State of Indiana reduced the University 
operating appropriation by $4 million and fee replacement income used for debt service by $0.6 million. 

•	 Other capital revenues decreased by $6.1 million. For 2012, capital appropriations included the final 
drawdown of ARRA monies from the State of Indiana of $1.2 million. Capital grants and gifts included the 
NSF grant for science lab renovations and a gift for a dietetics lab renovation.

	 Indiana State University continues to make market-competitive compensation and benefits a top priority. 
These expenses represent 58 percent of total University expense/budget. 

The John W. Moore Welcome Center
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Enrollment and Housing Occupancy for Year Ending 6/30/12
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	 A comparative summary of the University’s expenses for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as 
follows: 

Operating Expenses (in millions)

		  	 2012	 2011
Operating:	
     Compensation and benefits	 $	 116.5 	 $	 116.0  
     Supplies and expenses		  51.6		  46.0 
     Utilities		  10.4		  9.9 
     Scholarships and fellowships		  8.7		  8.9 
     Depreciation		  13.1		  12.4 
			   $	 200.3	 $	 193.2
Non-operating:	
     Interest on capital asset related debt	 $	 4.7	 $	 4.5
     Other non-operating expenses		  0.03		  0.3
	
Total expenses	 $	 205.0	 $	 198.0

A	 Supplies and expenses
	 26%  ($51,615,498)

B	 Utilities
	 5%  ($10,363,992)

C 	 Scholarships and fellowships
	 4%  ($8,731,582)

D	 Depreciation
	 7%  ($13,147,322)

E	 Compensation and benefits
	 58%  ($116,486,443)

A
E

B
C

D

	 The following is a graphic illustration of total expenses by object for year ending June 30, 2012:

	 The following is a graphic illustration of total expenses by object for year ending June 30, 2011:

A	 Supplies and expenses
	 24%  ($45,990,468)

B	 Utilities
	 5%  ($9,885,479)

C 	 Scholarships and fellowships
	 5%  ($8,859,322)

D	 Depreciation
	 6%  ($12,434,670)

E	 Compensation and benefits
	 60%  ($116,049,252)

A
E

B
C

D
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Expenses by Function (in millions)

	 	 2012	 2011
Operating:
	 Instruction  	 $	 65.9	 $	 62.5
	 Research		  8.4    		  9.3
  	 Public service		     1.9   		  1.4 
  	 Institutional and academic support		  33.2		  34.9
  	 Student services		     10.2		    10.0
  	 Operations of plant		  27.9		  26.3
	 Scholarships		      9.8		     10.1
  	 Auxiliary enterprises		   29.9		    26.3
  	 Depreciation		  13.1		  12.4
  			   $	 200.3	 $	 193.2

	 Total operating expenses increased by $7.1 million from 
$193.2 million in fiscal year 2011 to $200.3 million in fiscal 
year 2012.
•	 Compensation and benefits increased $0.5 million. This 

included a 3 percent wage increase midyear, a medical 
insurance increase, and an increased contribution to 
Public Employee Retirement Fund (PERF). There was 
an offset of $4 million due to an increase of the Other 
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) for retiree medical and 
life insurance.

•	 Supplies and expenses grew by $5.6 million for the year. 
This reflects increased payments to Sodexo for dining 
and payments made to a local hotel for housing an 
overflow of students. Additional supplies expense is also 
the result of increasing the capitalization threshold last 
fiscal year and increased cost of team travel for Athletics.

•	 Utilities expenses increased by $0.5 million for 2012. The 
rates for electricity increased as usage decreased. Rates 
also increased for water and sewage.

•	 Scholarships and fellowships expense decreased by $0.2 
million

•	 Depreciation expense grew by $0.7 million. Additional 
buildings and renovations were added to depreciable 
assets during the year.

	 In addition to their natural (object) classification (expenditure type), the reader is also benefited by a 
review of operating expenses by the nature of the University division incurring the expense. A summary of 
the University’s expenses by functional classification for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Statement of Cash Flows
	 The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the University’s financial health and perfor-
mance by identifying the major sources and uses of cash. The statement assists the reader to evaluate the 
entity’s ability to generate future net cash flows to meet obligations as they come due. On the next page 
is a comparative summary of the Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 and 
highlights of the major changes:  

Pickerl Hall
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Operating activities
•	 Cash used by operating activities decreased by $0.8 million.
•	 Cash provided by tuition and fees and auxiliary enterprises comprise 86 percent of inflows from operating 

activities, and grew by $5.4 million and $4.4 million, respectively, due to the growth in enrollment.
•	 Payments to employees and for employee benefits make up 63 percent of outflows of cash for operating 

activities. Payments to employees increased by $0.7 million and payments for benefits decreased by $2.8 
million.

•	 Payments to suppliers grew by $6.8 million due to increased expenses in team travel, room and board 
payments, and utilities.

Non-capital financing activities
•	 Cash provided by non-capital financing activities decreased by $4.2 million. This is reflective of a $4.6 

million decrease in cash received for state appropriations.
•	 State appropriations make up 68 percent of cash provided by non-capital financing activities.
  
Capital financing activities
•	 Cash used by capital financing activities grew by $18.5 million. This is largely due to the change in proceeds 

from bond issues which was $17.8 million in 2011 compared to $4 million in 2012.
•	 Cash paid for capital assets increased to $35.1 million compared to $30.1 million in 2011.

Investing activities
•	 Cash used by investing activities increased by $5.9 million due to an increase in net investment purchases 

over 2011.

	 For the year ended June 30, 2012 more cash was used by operating, capital financing and investing activi-
ties, while less cash was provided by non-capital financing activities. The University experienced an overall 
$22.3 million decrease in cash. 

Statement of Cash Flows (in millions)
		                                                                            	 2012            	 2011

Cash received from operations	 $	 109.6	 $	 103.5 
Cash expended for operations		  (195.2)		  (189.9)
	
Net cash used by operating activities		  (85.6)		  (86.4)
Net cash provided by non-capital	
	 financing activities		  112.3		  116.5 
Net cash used by investing activities		  (10.6) 		  (4.7)  
Net cash used by capital and related	
	 financing activities		  (38.4)		  (19.9)
	
Net (decrease) increase in cash and 
	 cash equivalents	 $	 (22.3)	 $	 5.5 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year	 $	 41.0	 $	 35.5 
	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year	 $	 18.7	 $	 41.0
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Economic Factors that Will Affect the Future
	 The University is providing an environment that both challenges and educates its students. With an em-
phasis on experiential learning and community engagement activities, Indiana State University graduates 
are prepared for future leadership roles in their communities. 
	 Indiana State University’s fall 2012 enrollment head count grew to 12,114, an increase of nearly 600 
students, or more than a 5 percent increase compared to 2011. The incoming freshman class of 2,668 is an 
increase of 147 students, making it the largest incoming class in the school’s history. This is the third consecu-
tive year for record new student growth and a difference in class size of 840 students since 2009, when the 
entering class was 1,828. Other highlights include growth in the number of instate undergraduates of 340 
(4.4%), out-of-state undergraduates by 162 students (7.6%), and international enrollment by 100 students 
(31%). This is the overall largest enrollment since 1993, with 76 percent of the students from Indiana, and 
more than half of them are first generation college students. Having surpassed a goal of 12,000 students 
two years ahead of schedule, Indiana State University has a new enrollment target of 14,000 students by 
2017. The new enrollment goal would mark the largest student body in the University’s history, exceeding 
a record head count of 13,533 in 1970. Plans call for Indiana State to achieve its goal by adding more than 
1,000 undergraduate and 800 graduate students during the next five years. More than half of that growth 
would come from boosting the number of students completing degrees online.
	 Indiana State has set a goal of increasing first-year retention to 70 percent by 2017. At the same time, 
Indiana State will seek to increase its four-year graduation rate from more than 22 percent to 30 percent and 
boost its six-year graduation rate from 42 percent to 50 percent. A new four-year graduation guarantee, the 
formation of a University College to better serve new students, and  expanded summer programs to serve 
at-risk students are now in place to help achieve these goals and ensure that more students complete a 
bachelor’s degree.
	 The Indiana State University Board of Trustees authorized the sale of $30 million in bonds to finance the 
ongoing renovation of Erickson Hall as a residence hall and to construct a new housing facility on the north 
end of campus. These bonds are expected to be issued in late fall 2012. The new North Housing residence 
hall complex will house 352 beds and will be the first new residential housing project on the Indiana State 
University campus since the 1960’s. The overall cost of the complex is estimated at $24 million, of which ap-
proximately $3 million will be funded from Housing and Dining System reserves and the remaining $21 mil-
lion from proceeds of the bond issue. The Trustees also authorized the University to seek approval to spend 
up to $22 million for the first phase of a multi-year project to renovate Sycamore Towers student housing. 
The 12-story complex constructed in the 1960’s is expected to begin renovation next summer with Mills Hall 
as the first of four towers to be upgraded. Funding for this project would come from residence hall reserves 
and a bond issuance.
	 The University is currently working 
with a developer to create student hous-
ing in downtown Terre Haute. Initial plans 
were for 150 beds with a long-range 
plan of up to 600 beds, involving a mix 
of four-and-two-bedroom units with 
limited kitchen facilities. The new facility 
would be designed for upperclassmen 
and graduate students. Any new project 
would include retail space on the first 
level to be managed by a third party, 
with the upper floors containing student 
housing to be operated and managed by 
the University. 
	 Lilly Endowment has awarded a six-
year $3 million grant to Indiana State 
University to help fund the continued 
operation of the University’s distinctive 

“Under the Buttonwood,” a stone carving of a buttonwood leaf, 
commemorates a 1792 meeting beneath a buttonwood tree on Wall 
Street in New York City where 24 stockbrokers signed an agreement 
establishing the New York Stock Exchange.
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Networks Financial Institute (NFI). The grant brings the total amount the Lilly Endowment has invested in 
NFI to $32 million since the Institute’s launch in 2003.
	 Indiana State University Board of Trustees approved a lease to develop oil and gas resources on University 
property. The first stage of exploration will determine the extent of oil reserves available and if drilling and 
production is economically viable. 
	 Based on the University’s commitment to ensure that more Hoosiers can afford to pursue a higher education 
degree, Indiana State University scaled back a planned tuition increase for fiscal year 2013. A scheduled 3.5 
percent increase in instate undergraduate fees was reduced to 1.5 percent. This keeps in line the University’s 
effort to limit future increases in student costs to increases in the Consumer Price Index. Other affordability 
measures include a restructuring of summer school fees, textbook and laptop PC rental programs, and ex-
panded student employment opportunities. An affordability task force continues to exam other cost savings.
	 Other goals listed for the next three years include:  increasing programs with experiential learning from 
68 percent to 100 percent, expanding the number of students involved in community engagement from 
6,145 to 7,500, boosting the number of businesses served by the Business Engagement Center from 21 to 
40, and increasing funding for the Unbounded Possibilities Initiative designed to strengthen the University’s 
most distinctive and promising programs from $1.5 million to $5 million across the next five years.
	 As part of the initiative to increase and diversify University revenues, the Indiana State University Foun-
dation initiated a comprehensive campaign, titled “March On!  The Campaign for Indiana State University.”  
Fundraising dollars from this campaign are earmarked for the following areas: facility support, faculty, pro-
gram support, student support and the Fund for the Future. The campaign exceeded the goal of $85 million 
at the end of December 2011 by raising $86.7 million. This created more than 250 new scholarships. More 
than 18,000 donors contributed to the campaign including 19 commitments of $1 million or more.
	 Indiana State University’s management is confident that the University’s financial condition is strong and 
will meet all foreseeable economic requirements. 
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 2011 

$	 40,972,520 
 	 16,214,781 
 	 630,252 
 	 3,319,288 
 	 7,195,811 
 	 1,330,303 
 	 1,614 
 	 3,065,041 
 	 1,036,797 
 	 14,577 
 	 85,881 
$	 73,866,865 

$	 556,956 
 	 491,617 

 	 4,594,469 
	  79,882,664 
	  7,103,613 

	  326,996,174 
$	 419,625,493 

$	 493,492,358 

$	 3,864,339 
 	 4,172,575 
 	 1,351,088 
 	 — 
 	 2,947,156 
 	 4,671,970 
 	 7,382,945 
 	 3,324,364 
 	 294,561 
 	 1,302,600 
$	 29,311,598 

$	 609,893 
	 — 
 	 350,000 
 	 104,194,430 
 	 776,391 
 	 1,000,441 
 	 7,820,450 
$	 114,751,605 

$	 144,063,203 

$	 222,855,308 

 	 556,956 
 	 2,203,734 

 	 583,492 
 	 12,465,814 
 	 110,763,851 

$	 349,429,155

2012

$	 18,714,665 
	  7,545,331 
	  807,329 
	  4,641,618 
	  5,222,959 
	 1,545,961 
	 — 
	  3,345,639 
	  787,148 
	 — 
	 31,153 
$	 42,641,803 

$	 510,704 
 	 418,077 
 	
	 4,363,689 
 	 106,683,476 
 	 11,138,913 
 	
	 350,790,896 
$	 473,905,755 

$	 516,547,558 

$	 3,660,648 
 	 2,881,393 
 	 1,171,922 
 	 242,593 
 	 1,285,527 
 	 4,768,923 
	 7,237,945 
	 3,119,210 
	  343,858 
	  1,251,323 
$	 25,963,342 

$	 465,293 
	 1,940,742 
	 — 
	 100,956,484 
	  906,318 
	  749,769 
	  7,783,450 
$	 112,802,056 

$	 138,765,398 

 	 241,508,076 

 	 510,704 
 	 2,190,855 

 	 286,818 
 	 3,805,526 
 	 129,480,181 

$	 377,782,160

ASSETS	
Current Assets	
	 Cash and cash equivalents
	 Short-term investments
	 Accrued interest
	 Accounts receivable (net of allowance of$5,606,623 for 2012 and$6,280,785 for 2011)
	 Other accounts receivable
	 Grants receivable
	 State receivable
	 Notes receivable, current portion
	 Prepaid expenses
	 Other assets
	 Inventories
		  Total current assets
	
Non-current Assets	
	 Endowment investments - held in trust
	 Deposits with bond trustee
	 Notes receivable, non-current portion (net of allowance of$725,436 for 2012 and 
	 $724,656 for 2011)
	 Other long-term investments
	 Net OPEB Asset (Note 19)
	 Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation of$241,758,662 for 2012 and 
	 $232,309,242 for 2011)
		  Total non-current assets
	
		  TOTAL ASSETS
	
LIABILITIES	
Current liabilities	
	 Accounts payable
	 Accrued payroll and deductions
	 Deferred revenue
	 Deferred inflow of resources (Note 7)
	 Funds held in custody for others
	 Other current liabilities
	 Bonds payable (Note 6)
	 Compensated absences & termination benefits (Note 10)
	 Lease payable
	 Debt interest payable
	  	 Total current liabilities
	
Non-current liabilities	
	 Funds held in custody for others
	 Deferred inflow of resources (Note 7)
	 Other long-term liabilities
	 Bonds payable (Note 6)
	 Compensated absences & termination benefits (Note 10)
	 Lease payable
	 Advances from Federal Government
	   	 Total non-current liabilities
	
		  TOTAL LIABILITIES
	
NET ASSETS	
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt	
Restricted for:	
	 Non-expendable:
	   	 Scholarships and fellowships
	   	 Loans
	 Expendable:
	   	 Research and other grants
	   	 Capital projects
Unrestricted	
	
		  TOTAL NET ASSETS

Indiana State University
Comparative Statement of Net Assets

For the Years Ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011
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ASSETS	
	
	 Cash and equivalents
	 Short-term investments
	 Pledges and bequests, receivable, net
	 Due from Indiana State University
	 Investment in joint ventures
	 Property held for future use
	 Property and equipment, net
	 Amortizable intangible assets, net
	 Assets held in trusts, interest in trusts and split-interest agreements
	 Investments restricted for long-term purposes
	 Pledges and bequests receivable restricted for long-term purposes, net
	 Other assets restricted for long-term purposes
	 Other assets   
	
TOTAL ASSETS	
	
	
LIABILITIES	
	 Accounts payable
	 Lines of credit borrowings
	 Due to Indiana State University
	 Split-interest agreement obligations
	 Refundable advances
	 Deferred revenue
	   	 Total Liabilities
	
NET ASSETS	
	   Unrestricted
	   Temporarily restricted
	   Permanently restricted
	      	 Total net assets
	
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS	

 

$	 866,706 
 	 5,506,065 
 	 4,535,459 
 	 2,056,552 
 	 1,235,365 
 	 1,127,705 
 	 1,498,212 
 	 362,981 
 	 3,516,807 
 	 41,044,908 
 	 254,210 
 	 1,755 
 	 637,866 

$	 62,644,591 

$	 378,469 
 	 6,764,541 
 	 5,019,463 
 	 2,092,983 
 	 499,451 
 	 11,400 
 	 14,766,307 

 	 (16,745,097)
 	 17,037,983 
 	 47,585,398 
 	 47,878,284 

$	 62,644,591 

Indiana State University Foundation, Inc. and Affliate
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2012
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2011

$	 86,096,586 
 	 (33,559,222)
 	 (460,238)
 	 52,077,126 
 	 5,077,481 
 	 203,978 
 	 3,243,906 
 	 41,343,680 
 	 (8,241,612)
 	 (473,556)
 	 32,628,512 
 	 6,917,478 
$	 100,148,481 

$	 116,049,252 
	  45,990,468 
	  9,885,479 
	  8,859,322 
	  12,434,670 
$	 193,219,191 

$	 (93,070,710)

$	 81,125,835 
 	 505,968 
	  3,542,761 
	 (4,510,470)
	  31,374,371 
	  2,785,241 
	  (331,571)
$	 114,492,135 

$	 21,421,425 

$	 3,500,302 
$	 6,115,353 

$	 9,615,655 

$	 31,037,080 

$	 (1,370,918)

$	 319,762,993 
$	 349,429,155 

2012

$	 91,033,298 
 	 (32,304,499)
 	 (485,030)
 	 58,243,769 
 	 5,077,712 
 	 201,092 
 	 2,866,180 
 	 46,134,449 
 	 (8,344,422)
 	 (381,668)
 	 37,408,359 
 	 5,602,341 
$	 109,399,453 

$	 116,486,443 
 	 51,615,498 
 	 10,363,992 
 	 8,731,582 
 	 13,147,322 
$	 200,344,837 

$	 (90,945,384)

$	 76,475,333 
 	 497,098 
 	 7,614,716 
 	 (4,682,284)
 	 31,796,829 
 	 4,165,166 
 	 (29,773)
$	 115,837,085 

$	 24,891,701 

$	 1,161,445 
$	 2,299,859 

$	 3,461,304 

$	 28,353,005 

$	 — 

$	 349,429,155 
$	 377,782,160 

OPERATING REVENUES	  
	  
	 Tuition and fees 
	 Scholarship allowances for tuition and fees 
	 Other allowances 
	      Net tuition and fees 
	 Federal grants and contracts 
	 State and local grants and contracts 
	 Non-governmental grants and contracts 
	 Auxiliary enterprises fees and services 
	 Scholarship allowances for room and board 
	 Other allowances 
	      Net auxiliary enterprises fees and services 
	 Other operating revenues 
		  Total operating revenues			 

	
EXPENSES	  
	  
	 Compensation and employee benefits 
	 Supplies and expenses 
	 Utilities 
	 Scholarships and fellowships 
	 Depreciation 
		  Total operating expenses				  

	
			   Operating loss			 

	
			 
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)	  
	  
	 State appropriations 
	 Gifts 
	 Investment income (net of investment expenses of$393,350 for 2012 and$225,322 for 2011) 
	 Interest on capital asset related debt 
	 Non-operating grants and contract revenue 
	 Other non-operating revenues 
	 Other non-operating expenses 
		  Net non-operating revenue				  

	  
			   Income before other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses	

	 Capital appropriations 
	 Capital grants and gifts 
	  
			   Total other revenues				  

		
	  		  Increase in net assets			 

	
	 Change in accounting estimate 

		
NET ASSETS	  
	 Net assets—beginning of year 
	 Net assets—end of year				  

				  

Indiana State University
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

For the Years Ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011



2011-2012 Financial Report

21  

Total

 $	 4,221,631 

 	 1,740,994 
 	 (892,700)
 	 848,294 
 	 1,041,187 
 	 (246,275)
 	 1,548,500 

	 —
 	 301,767 
 	 7,715,104 
	 —
 	 7,715,104 

 	 1,934,610 
 	 4,826,104 
 	 6,760,714 
 	 2,079,121 
 	 1,197,000 
 	 3,019,592 
 	 477,839 
 	 13,534,266 

 	 (5,819,162)

 	 53,697,446 

 $	 47,878,284 

Permanently
Restricted

 $	 654,267 

	 —  
 	 (558)
 	 (558)
	 —
 	 (143,778)
	 —

 	 (190,023)
	 — 	
	 319,908 
	 —
 	 319,908 

	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —

 	 319,908 

 	 47,265,490 

 $	 47,585,398 

Temporarily
Restricted

 $	 3,249,875 

 	 1,281,611 
 	 (674,223)
 	 607,388 
 	 644,693 
 	 (34,922)
	 —
 	
	 (2,732,408)
	 —
 	 1,734,626 
 	 (6,448,986)
 	 (4,714,360)

	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —
	 —

 	 (4,714,360)

 	 21,752,343 

 $	 17,037,983 

Unrestricted

 $	 317,489 

 	 459,383 
 	 (217,919)
 	 241,464 
 	 396,494 
 	 (67,575)
 	 1,548,500 

 	 2,922,431 
 	 301,767 
 	 5,660,570 
 	 6,448,986 
 	 12,109,556 

 	 1,934,610 
 	 4,826,104 
 	 6,760,714 
 	 2,079,121 
 	 1,197,000 
 	 3,019,592 
 	 477,839 
 	 13,534,266 

 	 (1,424,710)

 	 (15,320,387)

 $	 (16,745,097)

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
  	 Contributions
	 Investment income
		  Interest and dividends
		  Net realized and unrealized losses on investments
	        		  Total Investment Income
	 Non-gift income
	 Change in value of split-interest agreements
	 Service fee income—Indiana State University
	 Endowment administration, gift
	  	 assessments, and campaign subsidy
	 Prospect league
	
	 Net assets released from restrictions
	
	
EXPENSES	
	 Scholarships and awards
	 Restricted and designated expenditures
		  Total Program Services
	 Foundation operations
	 Sycamore operations
	 Development and President
	 Alumni affairs
	       		   Total Expenses

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
	

NET ASSETS
	 Beginning of Year - Restated
	
	 End of Year

Indiana State University Foundation, Inc. and Affliate
Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2012
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2011

$	 51,714,388 
 	 8,557,174 
 	 32,438,781 
 	 (58,378,918)
 	 (63,941,416)
 	 (60,280,694)
 	 (6,380,200)
 	 (950,024)
 	 1,301,932 
 	 9,455,648 
$	 (86,463,329)

 $	 81,087,484 
 	 20,519,461 
 	 (20,519,461)
 	 31,402,700 
 	 4,035,120 
$	 116,525,304 

$	 5,003,444 
 	 - 
 	 97,296 
 	 - 
 	 17,846,453 
 	 (331,571)
 	 (30,058,947)
 	 (12,441,798)
$	 (19,885,123)

$	 23,802,441 
 	 5,723,141 
 	 (34,200,000)
$	 (4,674,418)

$	 5,502,434 

$	 35,470,086 
$	 40,972,520 

$	 (93,070,710)

 	 12,434,670 
 	 - 

 	 96,076 
 	 248,383 
 	 (244,714)
 	 11,696 
 	 (422,334)
 	 (283,205)
 	 33,189 
 	 (385,964)
 	 30,814 
 	 (37,192)
 	 (782,163)
 	 (4,091,875)

$	 (86,463,329)

$	 82,783 
$	 (82,783)

2012
 
$	 57,136,401 
 	 8,105,624 
 	 36,776,908 
 	 (65,180,573)
 	 (64,570,483)
 	 (57,506,188)
 	 (6,882,381)
 	 (1,000,750)
 	 1,195,037 
 	 6,386,340 
$	 (85,540,065)

$	 76,513,684 
 	 17,892,429 
 	 (17,892,429)
 	 32,134,838 
 	 3,645,232 
$	 112,293,754 

$	 1,163,059 
 	 3,875,064 
 	 84,252 
 	 30,578 
 	 4,000,000 
 	 25,000 
 	 (35,135,040)
 	 (12,435,209)
$	 (38,392,296)

$	 13,174,283 
 	 5,673,518 
 	 (29,467,049)
$	 (10,619,248)

$	 (22,257,855)

$	 40,972,520 
$	 18,714,665 

$	 (90,945,384)

 	 13,147,322 
 	 (5,082,914)

 	 (1,322,330)
 	 (215,658)
 	 (280,598)
 	 54,728 
	  249,649 
	  922,779 
	  49,297 
	  (1,291,182)
	  (179,166)
	  (188,407)
	  (253,047)
	  (205,154)

$	 (85,540,065)

$	 99,054 
$	 (99,054)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and fees
Grants and contracts
Auxiliary enterprises
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for benefits
Payments to students
Loans issued to students
Student loans collected
Other receipts
	 Net cash used by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations
Direct loan program receipts
Direct loan program disbursements
Non-operating grants and contracts
Gifts and other non-operating income
	 Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital appropriations received
Capital gifts and grants received
Proceeds from trustee drawdowns
Proceeds from sale of land
Proceeds from bond issue
Costs of issuance
Cash paid for capital assets
Principal and interest paid on capital debt and leases
	 Net cash used by capital financing activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investments
Income from investing activities
Purchase of investments
 	 Net cash used by investing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash for year

Cash and cash equivalents- beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents- end of year

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Operating Loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities
	 Depreciation expense
	 Other non-cash adjustments

Changes in assets and liabilities
	 Accounts receivable
	 Grants receivable
	 Notes receivable
	 Inventories
	 Prepaid expenses
	 Accounts payable
	 Lease payable, current
	 Accrued payroll and deductions
	 Deferred revenue
	 Funds held in custody for others
	 Other liabilities
	 Compensated absences

Net cash used by operating activities

Non-cash transactions
	 Equipment
	 Capital lease

Indiana State University
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011



2011-2012 Financial Report

23  

 
$	 (5,819,162)

 	 185,054 
 	 476,724 
 	 2,198 
 	 892,700 
 	 (661,563)
 	 292,833 
 	 (374,059)
 	 246,275 
 	 (654,267)
 	 677,381 

 	 (836,574)
 	 715,784 
 	 (31,489)

 	 11,669 
 	 (1,606,000)
 	 (1,000)
 	 (6,483,496)

 	 (20,888,930)
 	 17,033,212 
 	 30,774 
 	 (124,155)
 	 (3,949,099)

 	 6,970,582 
 	 (206,041)
 	 19,288 
 	 (236,213)
 	 602,681 
 	 7,150,297 

	 (3,282,298)

	  4,149,004 

	 $866,706 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES	
	 Decrease in net assets
	 Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to net
	 cash used by operating activities:
		  Depreciation of property and equipment
		  Amortization of intangible assets
		  Loss on sales of property and equipment
		  Net realized and unrealized losses on investments
		  In-kind contributions of investments
		  Property held for future use transferred to Indiana State University
		  Contributions related to charitable remainder trusts
		  Change in value of split-interest agreement obligations
		  Contributions restricted for permanent endowment
		  Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
		  (Increase) decrease in certain assets:
			   Pledges and bequests receivable
			   Due from Indiana State University
			   Other assets
		  Increase (decrease) in certain liabilities:
	          	 Accounts payable
	           	 Due to Indiana State University
	           	 Deferred revenue
	              		   Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
	
INVESTING ACTIVITIES	
	 Purchases of investments
	 Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
	 Proceeds from sales of property and equipment
  	 Purchases of property and equipment
	             		  Net Cash Used by Investing Activities
	
FINANCING ACTIVITIES	
	 Borrowings on lines of credit
	 Repayments of lines of credit
	 Proceeds for new charitable gift annuities
	 Payments on charitable gift annuities and annuity trust
	 Collections of contributions restricted for permanent endowment
	              		  Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
	
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS	
	
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS	
	 Beginning of Year
	
	 End of Year

Indiana State University Foundation, Inc. and Affliate
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2012
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Notes to Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2012

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
	 Indiana State University (the University), a publicly supported, comprehensive, doctoral granting University, 
serves the State of Indiana, the nation, and the international community by generating and disseminating 
knowledge in the humanities, arts, social sciences, scientific, and professional disciplines through instruction 
and research. The University is governed by a nine-member Board of Trustees, appointed by the Governor. 
	 The accompanying financial statements of the University are prepared in accordance with generally ac-
cepted accounting standards as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in 
Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments. Since the University is a component unit of the State of Indiana, it is included in the Compre-
hensive Annual Financial Report of the State.

A. Reporting Entity
	 The University implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, De-
termining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 
14, The Financial Reporting Entity to provide additional guidance to determine whether certain organizations 
for which the University is not financially accountable should be reported as component units based on the 
nature and significance of their relationship with the University.
	 As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of the University as the primary government, 
and the Indiana State University Foundation as a discretely presented component unit. This component unit 
is further described in Section M.

B. Basis of Accounting 
	 For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a special-purpose government engaged 
only in business-type activities. The financial statements of the University have been prepared on the 
accrual basis, including 
depreciation expense re-
lating to capitalized fixed 
assets. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, reve-
nues are recognized when 
earned, and expenses are 
recorded when an obliga-
tion has been incurred. All 
significant intra-University 
transactions have been 
eliminated to avoid double 
counting of these transac-
tions. Examples of these 
would include sales be-
tween University depart-
ments or internal loans 
between funds.

John W. Moore Welcome Center
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Minimum Capitalization Value and Useful Life by Asset Types

			   Capitalization	
Asset Types	 Threshold	         Useful Life

Moveable equipment	 $	 5,000 	          5 to 10 years
Vehicles and machinery	   	 5,000 	          4 to 10 years
Software and computer equipment	   	 5,000  	          5 years
Buildings and related components	   	100,000 	         15 to 100 years
Land improvements and infrastructure	   	100,000 	         10 to 20 years
Library books and audio visual aids	   	 1	          20 years
Art objects*	   	 1	          Not depreciated

*Art Objects are recorded either at cost or fair market value at the time of acquisition, 
but are not depreciated because these assets tend to appreciate in value over time.

C. Cash Equivalents
	 The University considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. The University invests operating cash in investments with varying maturities. For purpose 
of liquidity classification, investments maturities are evaluated as of the financial statement date. 

D. Investments
	 Investments in securities are reported on the financial statements at fair value as of the date of the financial 
statements. Investments with maturity of less than one year are reported as current assets, with the remain-
ing investments reported as non-current assets.

E.	 Inventories 
	 Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market value and on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

F.	 Capital Assets
	 The capitalization guidelines were changed during the 2011 fiscal year and reflected on the chart below. 
See Note 2 for the details of the change.
	 Capital assets are stated at cost or, if donated, at fair market value on the date of acquisition. Moveable 
equipment costing $5,000 with a useful life of more than one year and building improvements that exceed 
$100,000 and extend the life of the building are capitalized. Infrastructure assets are included in the financial 
statements and are depreciated. Depreciation is reported using the straight-line method of depreciation over 
the estimated useful life of the asset. Capital assets and related accumulated depreciation are removed from 
the records at the time of disposal. Art Objects are recorded either at cost or fair market value at the time of 
acquisition, but are not depreciated because these assets tend to appreciate in value over time.

G.	 Scholarship Discounts and Other Allowances
	 Student tuition and fee revenues and certain other revenues from students are reported net of scholarship 
discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Scholarship 
discounts are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the University 
and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the students’ behalf. Cer-
tain governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and other federal, state or non-governmental programs, are 
recorded as non-operating revenues in the University’s financial statements. To the extent that revenues from 
such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the University has recorded 
a scholarship discount. Other allowances include the allowance for bad debt, which will be recorded as a 
reduction to the appropriate revenue.
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H. Net Assets
	 University resources are classified for financial reporting purposes into four net asset categories:	
	 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: This represents the University’s total investment in capital 
assets, net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.
	 Restricted net asset, non-expendable: Non-expendable restricted net assets consist of endowment 
and similar type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift 
instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity and invested for the purpose 
of producing present and future income, which may either be expended or added to principal.
	 Restricted net assets, expendable: Restricted expendable net assets include resources that the University 
is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third par-
ties.
	 Unrestricted net assets: Unrestricted net assets represent resources derived from student tuition and 
fees, state appropriations, and sales and services of educational departments and auxiliary enterprises. These 
resources are used for transactions relating to the educational and general operations of the University and 
may be used at the discretion of the governing board to meet current expenses for any purpose. These 
resources also include auxiliary enterprises, which are substantially self-supporting activities that provide 
services for students, faculty and staff. Substantially all unrestricted net assets are designated for academic 
programs and initiatives, capital purposes, and general operations of the University.

I. Compensated Absences
	 Liabilities for compensated absences are recorded for vacation leave based on actual amounts earned as 
of the balance sheet date. Employees may accrue vacation benefits up to a maximum of 300 hours, which 
is payable upon termination. The accompanying statement of net assets reflects an accrual for the amounts 
earned and ultimately payable for such benefits at the end of the fiscal year.

J. Operating Revenues
	 Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, such as (1) 
student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, (2) sales and services of auxiliary en-
terprises, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, (3) most federal, state and local grants and contracts, 
and (4) interest on institutional student loans.

K. Non-Operating Revenues
	 Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange transactions, 
such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are defined as non-operating revenues by 
GASB No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Pro-
prietary and Non-expendable Trust Funds 
and Governmental Entities That Use 
Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB 
No. 34, including state appropriations 
and investment income. Non-operating 
revenues include any grant that the 
University has administrative duties 
and is a non-exchange transaction. 
This would include Pell Grant, SEOG, 
and any State Grant that the University 
has to determine eligibility, even if the 
eligibility requirements are set forth by 
Federal or State agencies.

Sycamore Banquet Center
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L. Restricted and Unrestricted Resources
	 When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for a particular expenditure, University 
management may select the most appropriate funding source based on individual facts and circumstances. 
The University does not require funds be expended in a particular order, and the decision on what fund order 
is used is made on a case-by-case basis.

M. Component Units
	 The Indiana State University Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt component unit of Indiana State 
University. Indiana State University Foundation, Inc. was incorporated on March 10, 1921. The Foundation was 
organized to promote educational purposes and receive contributions primarily for the benefit of Indiana 
State University and its students.
	 The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising organization to supplement the resources that are available 
to the University in support of its programs. The 33 member board of the Foundation is self-perpetuating 
and consists of graduates and friends of the University. Although the University does not control the timing 
or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources, or income therein, that the Founda-
tion holds and invests are restricted to the activities of the University by the donors. Because these restricted 
resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, the Foundation is 
considered a component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University’s financial state-
ments.
	 The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) standards, including FASB Statement No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organiza-
tions. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial 
information in the University’s financial reporting presentation for these differences.
	 During the year ended June 30, 2012 the Foundation distributed $6,173,126 to the University for both 
restricted and unrestricted purposes. Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained 
from the Foundation Office at 30 North 5th Street, Terre Haute, IN 47809.
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	 Cash on hand	 $       	 92,179
	 Deposits with financial institutions 	    	 (373,724)
	 Investments	  	 134,153,798
						      $	133,872,253

Note 2. Changes in Accounting Estimate
	 A change in accounting estimate regarding the treatment of capital assets was made as of July 1, 2010. To 
align more closely with the federal government capitalization guidelines and those of other Indiana educa-
tional institutions, the cost for moveable equipment subject to capitalization and depreciation was increased 
from $2,500 to $5,000. Building improvements that exceed $100,000 and extend the life of the building are 
recorded as capital assets and subject to depreciation, an increase from the previous $50,000 threshold. This 
change resulted in a $1,370,918 special item recorded on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Assets. This also reduced the number of moveable equipment items by 2,307. 

Note 3. Cash and Investments
	 The University maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s 
portion of this pool is displayed in the Statement of Net Assets under cash and cash equivalents, short-term 
investments, long-term investments, deposits with bond trustee, or endowment investments-held in trust, 
depending on the nature of the investment. 

Cash and Investments
	 Cash and investments as of June 30, 2012 consist of the following:

	 Authorization for investment activity is stated in Indiana Code Title 21, Article 21, Chapter 3, Section .3. 
Additionally, IC 30-4-3.5 (Indiana Prudent Investor Act) requires that the Board of Trustees of the University 
to act “as a prudent investor would, by considering the purposes, terms, distribution requirements, and 
other circumstances of the trust.” It also requires that management decisions be made “in the context of the 
trust portfolio as a whole and as a part of the overall investment strategy having risk and return objectives 
reasonably suited to the trust.” The Board holds responsibility to assure the assets are prudently invested in 
a manner consistent with this investment policy. The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibilities for 
overseeing the investment program to the University Treasurer. 
	 A revised investment policy was approved by the Board of Trustees on May 7, 2010. The objective of the 
Investment Policy is to adequately provide for the liquidity needs of the University while maximizing the 
opportunity to increase yield on investments. The investment structure is divided into three liquidity tiers to 
provide for income maximization while meeting the daily liquidity requirements of the University. In order 
to supply sufficient day-to-day operating liquidity, Tier I is invested in money market securities and liquidity 
reserves. Tier II is invested in limited duration securities to provide for a sufficient level of reserves in case of 
unanticipated liquidity needs; yet provide for a level of incremental return over Tier I. Tier III is invested for 
income maximization while taking on appropriate levels of risk.
	 Authorized investments include US Treasury, US Government Agency or Instrumentality, Mortgage-Backed 
Securities, Asset Backed Securities, Taxable Municipal Bonds, Non-benefit Responsive GIC’s, Money Market 
Instruments and Funds, Corporate Investment Grade Bonds, Corporate High Yield Bonds, Non-US Dollar 
Debt, and Combined Plus Exposure. Credit Quality and Market Value percentages are established for each 
investment manager portfolio. This policy was implemented in September 2010.
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As of June 30, 2012, the University had the following investments and maturities:

	                                                                                                	                            Investment Maturities (in years) 
			   Less 			   More
Investment Type	 Fair Value 	 Than 1 	 1-5 	 6-10 	 Than 10 

Cash on hand (petty cash)	 $	 92,179 	 $	 92,179 	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 — 
Demand deposits		  (373,724)		  (373,724) 		  — 		  — 		  —
Money market funds		  11,621,490		  11,621,490 		  — 		  — 		  —
Commercial paper		  2,459,184		  2,459,184 		  — 		  — 		  —
Certificates of deposit             		  6,487,725		  5,829,032		  658,693		  —		  —
Asset-backed securities		  9,070,143		  61,090 	           8,026,431		   982,622		  — 
Collateralized mortgage obligations		  11,049,333 		  —	           1,303,012		  1,171,254		  8,575,067 
Corporate bonds		  47,795,655 	          2,215,810 		  24,690,726 		  12,653,496 	       	 8,235,623 
Corporate stock		  79,761		  —		  —		  —		  79,761 
Credit default swap		  40,803		  —		  40,803		  —		  — 
Government agencies		  9,880,908		  — 		  7,935,750 		  838,747		  1,106,411 
Mortgage-backed securities		  14,238,241 	             178,350 		  110,452		  3,356,372 	   	   10,593,067 
Municipal bonds		  1,109,157		  — 		  577,380 		  89,727		           442,050 
Treasury notes and bonds		  19,810,694 	          4,594,662		  6,125,194 		  4,424,938 	    	    4,665,900 
Endowment investments held in trust		  510,704		  —		  —		  —		  510,704 
 	 $	 133,872,253 	 $	 26,678,073 	  $	 49,468,441 	  $	 23,517,156 	 $	 34,208,583 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
	 Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the University and its investment managers manages 
its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments 
and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to 
maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.
	 Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the University’s investments (including investments 
held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table showing the 
distribution of Indiana State University’s investments by maturity:

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations
	 The University’s investments include the following investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate 
fluctuations (to a greater degree than already indicated in the information provided).

Highly Sensitive Investments 	  Fair Market Value at Year End

Mortgage-backed securities and asset-backed securities. These securities 
are subject to early payment in a period of declining interest rates. The resultant 
reduction in expected  total cash flows affects the fair value of the securities 
and makes the fair values of these securities highly sensitive to changes in 
interest rates.	 $23,308,384

Callable bonds. These securities are subject to be called or early redeemed by 
the issuing agency in periods of declining interest rates. The possible reduction 
in expected cash flows affects the fair value of these securities and makes the 
fair value of these securities more sensitive to changes in interest rates. 	 $6,260,299
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	 						      B or	 Not 
Investment Type	 Fair Value	 AAA	 Aa	 A	 lower	 Rated
						    
Cash on hand (petty cash)	 $	 92,179	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 92,179 
Demand deposits		  (373,724)		  —		  —		  —		  —		  (373,724)
Money market funds		  11,621,490		  —		  —		  —		  —		  11,621,490 
Commercial paper		  2,459,184		  —		  —		  2,459,184		  —		  —
Certificates of deposit		  6,487,725		  —		  —		  —		  —		  6,487,725 
Asset-backed securities		  9,070,143 	         8,683,480		  386,663		  —		  —		  — 
Collateralized mortgage obligations		  11,049,333 	         8,911,293 		  508,995 	        1,214,860			  414,185		  —
Corporate bonds		  47,795,655 		  —		  4,350,916 	      15,555,854		  27,888,885 		  —
Corporate stock		  79,761		  —		  —		  —		  —		  79,761 
Credit default swap		  40,803		  —		  —		  —		  —		  40,803 
Government agencies		  9,880,908 	         9,880,908		  —		  —		  —		  —
Mortgage-backed securities		  14,238,241 	       14,238,241		  —		  —		  —		  — 
Municipal bonds		  1,109,157 	             235,111 	         	 550,814 	           323,232			  —		  —
Treasury notes and bonds		  19,810,694 	       19,810,694		  —		  —		  —		  —
Endowment investments held in trust		  510,704		  —		  —		  —		  —		  510,704 
	 $	133,872,253	 $	 61,759,727 	 $	 5,797,388	 $	 19,553,130	 $	 28,303,070 	 $	 18,458,938 

Disclosure Relating to Credit Risk 
	 Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rat-
ing organization. Credit risk is addressed in the University Investment Policy, approved May 7, 2010. Credit 
risk guidelines are established for each investment manager. The policy stipulates the percentage of each 
manager’s fixed income portfolio that must be rated Aa or better at the time of purchase. These percentages 
range from 65 percent to 100 percent. Presented below is the actual Moody’s rating at year end for each 
investment type.

Moody’s Rating Scale	

Concentration of Credit Risk
	 The investment policy of the University contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any 
one issuer. At June 30, 2012 investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, 
and external investment pools) that represent 5 percent or more of total University investments included 
the Federal National Mortgage Association totaling $6,045,032. 		

Custodial Credit Risk
	 Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institu-
tion, the University will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the 
event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, the University will not be able 
to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Indi-
ana State University’s investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than preference will be given to Indiana 
institutions because of additional insurance coverage provided by the State. Of the University’s investments, 
$19,810,694 in U.S. Government Obligations, $9,880,908 in U.S. Government Agencies and $11,621,490 of 
the Money Market funds invested in U.S. Government-backed funds are held by a trust department not in 
the University’s name.
	 As of June 30, 2012 Indiana State University’s deposits with financial institutions held in uncollateralized 
accounts are insured up to $250,000 by FDIC and in excess of $250,000 by the Indiana Public Deposits Fund. 
The Certificates of Deposits of $6,487,726 are also covered under the Indiana Public Deposits Fund, as they 
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				      Balance 	  		  Balance 
				     June 30, 2011 	  Additions 	  Deductions	  June 30,  2012 
Capital assets not being depreciated		
	 Land	 		  $	 27,983,677	 $	 1,046,673	 $	 (9,059)	 $	 29,021,291 
	 Works of art		  1,396,605		  56,140 		  (12,115)		           1,440,630 
	 Construction in progress		  28,446,963 	      	 25,992,634		  (27,015,567)	      	   27,424,030	
	 Total capital assets not being depreciated	 $	 57,827,245	 $	 27,095,447	 $	 (27,036,741)	 $	 57,885,951
			     	
Capital assets being depreciated		
Infrastructure	 $	 33,384,890 	 $	 250,902	 $	 —	 $	 33,635,792 
Land improvements		  20,998,660 		  4,067,500		  (337,090)		  24,729,070
Buildings			   366,320,998 		  29,524,975		  (1,038,382)		  394,807,591
Equipment		  79,143,787		  3,245,677 		  (2,627,200)		  79,762,264 
Capital lease assets		  1,629,836          		  99,054          		  —		  1,728,890
	 Total capital assets depreciated	 $	 501,478,171 	 $	 37,188,108	 $	 (4,002,672)	 $	 534,663,607
Less accumulated depreciation for		
	 Infrastructure	 $	 (29,784,408)	 $	 (861,233)   	 $	 —	 $	 (30,645,641)
	 Land improvements		  (14,324,417)		  (754,550)		  337,090        		  (14,741,877)
	 Buildings		  (132,311,300)		  (7,524,755)		  910,146  		  (138,925,909)
	 Equipment		  (55,508,760)		  (3,689,488)		  2,452,208 		  (56,746,040)
	 Lease amortization		  (380,357)             	 (318,838)		  —          		  (699,195)
Total accumulated depreciation	 $	 (232,309,242)	 $	 (13,148,864)	 $	 3,699,444   	 $	 (241,758,662)
					   
Total capital assets being depreciated, net	 $	 269,168,929 	 $	 24,039,244	 $	 (303,228)	 $	 292,904,945

Total capital assets, net	 $	 326,996,174	 $	 51,134,691  	 $	 (27,339,969)    	 $	 350,790,896

were invested in Indiana financial institutions. The University has no investments that are made up of foreign 
currency; therefore, the University is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Note 4. Capital Assets
	 Following are the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2012: 

Scott College of Business Federal Hall
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			   Balance			   Balance	 Current
			   June 30, 2011 	 Additions	 Reductions	 June 30, 2012	 Portion		
	
Bonds payable, net 	 $	111,577,375	 $	 4,000,000	 $	 7,382,946	 $	108,194,429	 $	 7, 237,945
Lease payable		  1,295,002		  99,054		  300,429		  1,093,627		  343,858
Compensated absences and
	 termination benefits		  4,100,755		  348,087		  423,314		  4,025,528		  3,119,210
Advances from federal 
	 government       	        7,820,450			  —		  37,000		  7,783,450		  —
     
Total long-term liabilities	 $	124,793,582	 $	 4,447,141	 $	 8,143,689	 $	121,097,034	 $	 10,701,013

Bond redemption reserve 
	 (matured unpaid bonds 
	 and coupons)									          	 287,348
     
Total long-term liabilities—current portion								        $	 10,988,361

			   Final	 Principal			   Total Net
	 Issue 	 Interest 	 Maturity	  Outstanding 	 Bond 	 Deferral	 Outstanding
	 Date	 Rate	 Dates	 June 30, 2012	 Premium	 of Loss 	 June 30, 2012

	 Student Fee Bonds
	 Series K	 2004	 3.0%-5.0%	 2025	 $	 6,090,000	 $	 473,792	 $	 (681,169)	 $	 5,882,623
	 Series L	 2005	 3.0%-5.0%	 2021		  19,570,000		  1,106,840		  (1,784,183)		  18,892,657
	 Series M	 2007	 4.0%-5.0%	 2033		  40,530,000	    	 612,561		  N/A		  41,142,561
	 Series N	 2010	 1.0%-6.64%	 2029		  8,875,000	    	 N/A		  N/A		  8,875,000
	 Series O	 2011	 2.0%-5.0%	 2031		  8,375,000	    	 10,475		  N/A		  8,385,475
	
	 Housing and Dining Revenue Bonds
	 Series 2009	 2009	 3.0%-6.38%	 2027		  12,305,000		  56,113		  N/A		  12,361,113 
	 Series 2010	 2010	 1.43%-5.41%	 2027		  8,655,000		  N/A		  N/A		  8,655,000

	 Parking Revenue Bond
	 Series 2012	 2012	 1.72%	 2017		  4,000,000		  N/A		  N/A		  4,000,000 
	
	 Total Bonds				    $	108,400,000	 $	 2,259,781	 $	 (2,465,352)	 $	108,194,429

Note 5. Long-Term Liabilities	
	 Long-term liabilities of the University consist of bonds and notes payable, capital leases payable, com-
pensated absences, and other liabilities.
	 The changes in long-term liabilities are as shown below:

Note 6. Bonds Payable
	 Indiana State University is authorized by acts of the Indiana General Assembly to issue bonds and notes 
for the purposes of financing the construction of student housing, athletic facilities, parking, and academic 
facilities. The outstanding bond principal indebtedness consists of the following issues.

	 The issues are serial or term bonds with maturities extending until 2033. For the fiscal year 2012 an 
$8,160,595 separate fee replacement appropriation was received from the State of Indiana. The appropriation 
represented the amount required to make principal and interest payments for financing certain academic 
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 		   Final Maturity/	 Amount Outstanding
Description of Bonds	 Call Date	 June 30, 2012 

Apartment Revenue Bonds:
	 Series E	  11/1/2012	 $	 105,000

Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal Year	 Principal Bonds	 Interest Bonds	 Total

2012-2013	 $	 7,300,000	 $	 4,895,425  	 $	 12,195,425
2013-2014		  7,590,000		  4,590,552		  12,180,552
2014-2015		  7,895,000		  4,274,177		  12,169,177
2015-2016		  7,435,000		  3,948,903		  11,383,903
2017-2021		  32,755,000		  15,499,078		  48,254,078
2022-2026		  27,880,000		  8,399,886		  36,279,886
2027-2031		  14,860,000		  2,203,476		  17,063,476
2032-2033		  2,685,000		  125,684		  2,810,684
	 $	 108,400,000	 $	 43,937,181	 $	 152,337,181

Net unamortized premium 
and deferral of loss		  (205,571)		  —		  (205,571)

Total	 $	 108,194,429	 $	 43,937,181	 $	 152,131,610

and student facilities. The University has pledged $91,127,043 in student tuition as collateral for student fee 
bonds and student service bonds, $1,681,390 of the dedicated Student Recreational Fee for Series M, and 
$1,019,779 of parking revenue for the Parking Revenue Bonds. 
	 In prior years, Indiana State University defeased certain serial bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds 
in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust 
accounts and liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the financial statements of Indiana State 
University. 

	 The University issued  $4 million of Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 on March 8, 2012. See Note 8 for 
details.

Note 7. Service Concession Arrangements 
	 In July 2010, Indiana State University entered into a contract with Sodexo Services of Indiana Limited 
Partnership to provide food services for ISU’s students, faculty, staff and invited guests for a term of 11 years. 
Included in the agreement was a commitment by Sodexo to provide equipment and facility enhancements 
of up to $2,900,000 to construct the new Sycamore Banquet Center inside the Hulman Memorial Student 
Union, with contributions by the University of approximately $800,000. Construction was completed and 
the Banquet Center was put into use in April 2012. 
	 Food services for the Banquet Center will be provided by Sodexo, and it will remain an asset of the Uni-
versity. Due to the nature of this agreement, whereas Sodexo is the operator and ISU is the transferor, it has 
been classified as a Service Concession Arrangement. The Sycamore Banquet Center has been classified as a 
capital asset with an offsetting Deferred Inflow of Resources. Over the life of the contract, ISU will amortize 
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Fiscal Year	 Lease Payments

2013	 $	 400,724
2014		  400,724
2015		  398,536

	 Total minimum lease payments	 $	1,199,984

	 Less amount representing interest	 $	 106,357

Present value of net minimum lease payment	 $	1,093,627

the Deferred Inflow of Resources, while recognizing Auxiliary Revenue each year. If the agreement expires, 
terminates, or is amended in a way that has an adverse impact on Sodexo, ISU will be liable for the unamor-
tized portion of Sodexo’s investment.
	 As of June 30, 2012 the Banquet Center had been in use for three months, and the University recognized 
$60,648 in Auxiliary Revenue with an offsetting decrease of Deferred Inflow of Resources.

Banquet Center Capital Asset: 	 $	 3,021,294
Less: Contribution by ISU		  (777,311)
Deferred Inflow of Resources 	 $	 2,243,983
		
Deferred Inflow of Resources 	 $	 2,243,983
Revenue Recognition as of 6/30/12		  (60,648)
Deferred Inflow of Resources as 6/30/12	 $	 2,183,335 

Note 8. Bond Issues 

Parking Revenue Bonds (Direct Bank Placement), Series 2012
	 On March 8, 2012 the University issued $4,000,000 of Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2012. This issue was a 
Tax-Exempt, Non-Bank Qualified Direct Bank Placement. Old National Bank was selected during a RFP process 
with an interest rate of 1.72 percent and a final maturity date of April 1, 2017. Bond proceeds of $4,000,000 
and parking revenue reserves of $850,000 were used for the project described below. 

Cherry Street Parking Garage
	 Series 2012 consists of the acquisition of the Cherry Street Parking Garage from the City of Terre Haute 
Indiana, at a total cost of $4,850,000, of which $4,000,000 was paid from the proceeds of the Series 2012 Bond 
and the remainder from parking revenues reserves. Originally opened in May 2008, the parking garage has 
626 parking spaces which are needed to accommodate the parking demand due to the opening of the Scott 
College of Business across the street. The Multi-Modal Transportation facility cost approximately $14 million 
to build, with $9 million coming from the U.S. Department of Transportation. The Federal Transportation 
Authority granted the city authority to transfer the facility’s garage portion to Indiana State University.

Note 9. Lease Payable
	 Indiana State University has entered into a capital lease agreement with GE Capital Information Technology 
Solutions Inc. This is an agreement to lease copiers and printers for the campus of Indiana State University 
as of June 30, 2012. 
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Note 10. Termination Benefits 
Liability
	 The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 
Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits, requires 
the University to recognize an expense and liability for volun-
tary termination benefits, such as early-retirement incentives. 
This expense is recognized when an offer is accepted and the 
amount of the benefit can be estimated.
	 The ISU Board of Trustees approved a Retirement Severance 
Plan for eligible faculty and staff on February 18, 2010. Under 
the Retirement Severance Plan, employees must be age 62 or 
older and have 20 years of service to retire from Indiana State 
University. The severance payments available under the plan 
are 60 percent for those employees with 15 years or more of 
service on December 31, 2010, and 40 percent for employees 
with less than 15 years of service on December 31, 2010. New 
employees hired on or after March 1, 2010, would be eligible for a 25 percent severance pay at retirement. 
	 A total of seven employees enrolled in the program during the 2012 fiscal year at a cost of $334,688. An 
additional $43,627 was reclassified as current compensated absences and termination benefits liability from 
non-current.
	 GASB Statement No. 47 requires the University to recognize an expense and liability for involuntary ter-
minations. This expense is recognized when a termination plan has been approved, communicated to the 
employees, and the amounts can be estimated. 
	 The University informed employees in February 2010 that a displaced workers plan would be implemented. 
This plan provides employees with severance pay of between 8 to 20 weeks, depending on years of service 
and notification period, in a lump-sum payment. Additional benefits included COBRA heath insurance paid 
at 100 percent by ISU for six months, up to four semesters of employee/spouse fee waiver benefits, up to ten 
semesters of dependent child fee waivers, and use of the Student Recreation Center. During fiscal year 2012, 
ten employees were displaced under this plan at a cost of $171,835.

Note 11. Risk Management
	 The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of 
assets; errors or omissions; job-related illnesses or injuries to employees; and health and other medical 
benefits provided to employees and their dependents. The University handles these risks of loss through 
combinations of risk retention and commercial insurance. For buildings and contents, the University has 
risk retention of $100,000 per occurrence. The maximum liability to the University for job-related illnesses 
or injuries is $350,000 per occurrence.
	 The University retains the risk for medical benefits up to a stop-loss provision of $225,000 per member. 
Accrued liabilities for unpaid medical claims, as of June 30, 2012, are included in current other liabilities. The 
liability is based on 25 percent of actual claims paid during the year, which represents a three-month aver-
age turnover period for claims processing. Changes in the balance of claims liabilities during the 2012 fiscal 
year are as follows:

Unpaid medical claims, 7/01/11	 $ 	 3,824,108
Claims incurred 		  15,064,627
Claims paid		  (15,180,530)
Unpaid medical claims, 6/30/12	 $ 	 3,708,205
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Note 12. Litigation
	 The University has been named as a defendant in a number of lawsuits. For most of these lawsuits, the final 
outcome cannot be determined and management is of the opinion that any ultimate outcome will not have 
a material effect upon the University’s financial position. A workmen’s compensation lawsuit that involved an 
injury of an employee of the University, in which the full worker’s compensation board agreed with the asser-
tion that the injury was sustained during a routine activity of daily living and was not employment related, 
was overturned by the Indiana Court of Appeals. The University’s appeal to the Indiana Supreme Court was 
not heard. Total damage of $1,000,000 is estimated in the case, with a stop-loss amount of $350,000. Based 
on medical payments and legal expenses paid by the University, the $350,000 obligation has been met and 
the additional claims will be paid by Employers Reinsurance. The contingent liability has been removed for 
fiscal year 2012.

Note 13. Funds Held in Custody for Others
	 Included in the balance Funds Held in Custody for Others are funds held on behalf of the ISU Foundation 
for Networks as part of a Lilly Foundation gift. These funds are currently invested on behalf of the Foundation, 
with $688,400 classified as a current liability and the remaining $465,293 classified as a non-current liability. 

Note 14. Pollution Remediation Obligation
	 To comply with GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation 
Obligations, the University must report a liability for an obligating event. An obligating event occurs when 
the University commences or legally obligates itself to commence pollution remediation. During fiscal year 
2012, Indiana State University worked on pollution remediation in Erickson Hall and Hulman Center renova-
tions, and the Statesman Towers demolition. Erickson Hall and Hulman Center roof replacement renovations 
totaling $33,500 are capitalized in the Construction in Progress account. The Statesman Tower demolition 
totaling $250,000 has been expensed in fiscal year 2012. As of June 30, 2012, these projects have not been 
completed, leaving an outstanding obligation of $283,500 which is classified as a current other liability. 
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Functional	 Compensation	 Supplies and		  Scholarships	
Classification	 and Benefits	 Materials	 Utilities	 and Fellowships	 Depreciation	 Total
	
Instruction	 $	 59,045,816	 $	 6,818,125	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 65,863,941 
Research		  5,032,519		  3,373,600		  —		  —		  —		  8,406,119 
Public service		  1,032,438		  853,937		  —		  —		  —		  1,886,375 
Academic support		  9,432,898		  4,829,941		  —		  —		  —		  14,262,839 
Student services		  8,094,163		  2,090,301		  —		  —		  —		  10,184,464
Institutional support		  11,785,548		  7,214,866		  —		  —		  —		  19,000,414
Operation of plant		  8,655,798		  8,986,276		  10,276,238		  —		  —		  27,918,312 
Scholarships		  1,036,974		  2,494		  —		  8,731,582		  —		  9,771,050 
Auxiliary enterprises		  12,370,289		  17,445,958		  87,754		  —		  —		  29,904,001
Depreciation		  —		  —		  —		  —		  13,147,322		  13,147,322 
	 $	 116,486,443	 $	 51,615,498	 $	 10,363,992	 $	 8,731,582	 $	 13,147,322	 $	 200,344,837

Note 16. Hedge Contracts
	 Indiana State University has entered into long-term natural gas hedge contracts with Energy USA-TPC for 
the purchase of 90-95 percent of the University’s estimated natural gas needed for the production of steam 
at the University’s power plant. The natural gas hedges run through June 30, 2014, and were entered into as 
a cost avoidance strategy. There were costs in excess of the contract amount of $1,949,204 for the 2012 fiscal 
year. This was due to the market price of natural gas being lower than the price at which the University had 
contracted to buy. This results from lower demand due to economic conditions as well as a lack of hurricanes 
and tropical storms in the Natural Gas production areas of the Gulf of Mexico, which have not caused any 
supply interruptions and minimal shut downs. Additional Natural Gas found in Shale Fields is made acces-
sible due to advances in drilling technology. There is also a risk that the University is exposed related to the 
failure of the counterparty to fulfill the contract. 

Note 17. Retirement Plans 
 
Authorization
	 Authorization to establish retirement plans is stated in Indiana Code Title 21, Article 21, Chapter 3, and 
Section 3.

Faculty and Exempt Staff
	 Faculty and executive/administrative/professional employees of the University participate in a defined 
contribution plan administered through the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association (TIAA) and College 
Retirement Equity Fund (CREF). Benefit provisions are established and/or amended by the Board of Trustees. 
The plan purchases individual annuity contracts for members and provides for immediate vesting. Beginning 
July 1, 2010, all TIAA-CREF contributions were converted to a flat 10 percent of base salary for all eligible fac-
ulty and exempt staff. For those faculty and exempt staff hired prior to July 1, 2004, the difference between 
the current amount and the new rate was added to the employee’s base salary. For fiscal year 2011-12, the 
University made contributions totaling $5,675,228 to this plan. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 there 
were 848 employees and retirees participating in TIAA/CREF, with annual salaries equal to $56,435,680.

Note 15. Natural Classifications with Functional 
Classifications
	 The University’s Operating Expenses by Functional Classification were as follows:
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	 	 	 Actuarial cost method:	 Entry age normal cost (level percent of payroll)
		  	 Asset valuation method:	 4-year smoothed market value with 20% corridor
			   Investment rate of return:	 7%
	 		  Projected salary increases:	 3.25%-4.5% (includes 3% wage inflation)
			   Cost of living increases:	 1.0% compounded annually on employer funded pension
		  	 Amortization method:	 Level dollar	
			   Amortization period:	 30 years closed

Net Pension Obligation
	 Fiscal Year Ended		 Fiscal Year Ended
	 June 30, 2011		  June 30, 2010

Annual required contribution	 $	 1,785,096	 $	 1,250,360

Interest on net pension obligation		  (35,962)		  (42,431)

Adjustment to annual required contribution		  41,401		  48,354

Annual pension cost	  	 1,790,535	  	 1,256,283

Contributions made		  (1,277,662)		  (1,184,771)

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation	  	 512,873	  	 71,512

Net pension obligation, beginning of year		  (513,749)		  (585,260)

Net pension obligation, end of year	 $ 	 (876)	 $ 	 (513,748)

Three-Year Trend Information (in thousands)
						       Excess	
			   Excess of			   (Unfunded)
	 Valuation	 Accrued	 Assets over	  Funded	  Annual	 AL as a 	 Annual	 Percentage	  Net
	 of Assets	 Liability	 (unfunded)	 Ratio	 Covered	 Percentage	 Pension	 of APC	 Pension
		  (AL)	 AL		   Payroll	  of Covered	 Cost	 Contributed	 Obligation
				     		  Payroll	  
	 (a)	 (b)	  (a-b)	 (a/b)	 (c)	  ((a-b)/c)		   

7/1/2009	 $22,492	 $25,900	 ($3,408)	 86.8%	 $18,877	  -18.19%	 $1,143	 102%	 ($585)
7/1/2010	 $17,551	 $26,060	 ($8,509)	 67.4%	 $17,523	 -48.6%	 $1,256	 94.3%	 ($514)
7/1/2011	 $14,355	 $25,424	 ($11,069)	 56.5%	 $16,203	 -67.9%	 $1,791	 71.4%	 ($1)

Non-exempt Staff
	 Regular clerical and service staff participate in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF), a retirement 
program administered by an agency of the State of Indiana. PERF is an agent multiple-employer public em-
ployee retirement system, which provides retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit 
provisions are established and/or amended by the Board of Trustees of PERF. There are two parts to this 
plan: an annuity savings plan and a defined benefit agent multi-employer plan. The University contributes 
3 percent of the gross earnings to the annuity savings plan. The University also contributed 8.6 percent of 
the employee’s gross earnings to the defined benefit agent multi-employer plan during the 2011-2012 year. 
Employees are eligible to participate in this plan immediately upon employment and are fully vested in the 
defined benefit plan after ten years of service. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 there were 596 em-
ployees participating in PERF with annual salaries equal to $17,652,394.
	 PERF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supple-
mentary information for the plan as a whole and for its participants. That report may be obtained by writing 
the Public Employees Retirement Fund, Harrison Building, Room 800, 143 West Market Street, Indianapolis, 
IN 46204, or by calling (317) 232-4162.
	 The University’s annual pension cost and related information, as provided by the actuary, for the periods 
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, is presented below. The actuarial methods and significant assumptions used 
are as follows:
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VEBA Investment Policy Guideline Diversification

	 Asset Class	 Target	 Minimum	 Maximum
	 Equity	 60.0 %	 55.0 %	 65.0 %
	 Fixed Income	 40.0 %	 35.0 %	 45.0 %

Actual VEBA Investment Diversification

		  Actual $	 Actual %
	 Core Equity (indexed)	 9,179,212	 13.8 
	 Growth Equity	 2,899,607	  4.3  
	 Value Equity	 4,419,918	 6.6  
	 Small Cap Equity	 1,129,738	   1.7   
	 Small Cap Growth Equity	 1,513,461	   2.3 
	 Small Cap Value Equity	 1,246,837	                1.8  
	 International Core Equity	 6,125,887	 9.2  
	 International Emerging Mkts	 2,832,124	 4.3
	 Unconstrained 	 3,055,530	 4.5
	 Fixed Income	             31,301,343	 46.9
	 Non-Directional Hedge Fund	   3,041,582	 4.6
			    66,745,239	 100.0% 

Note 18. VEBA Trust
	 The University established a Voluntary Employees’ Benefit Association (VEBA) trust, with an independent 
trustee, for the purpose of providing retiree medical benefits for retired employees of Indiana State University 
and their dependents that become eligible upon accruing the required years of service. Approval from the 
IRS for the tax-exempt status of the trust was received on March 2, 1999.
	 The trust is funded from reserves set aside in previous years for this purpose, University contributions, and 
employee payroll deductions for post-retirement benefits, and reinvested net earnings. Beginning January 
1, 2012, the University ceased making contributions to the VEBA trust. A summary of the activity in the trust 
for the year ending June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Beginning fund balance 7/1/11 (market value)	 $	 65,730,650
Transfer of employee/employer contributions		  1,019,170
Reinvested net earnings		  1,876,219
Less:  management fees		  (141,970)
Realized gain on sale of investments		  967,393
Unrealized loss on increase in market value		  (2,706,221)

Market value at June 30, 2012	 $	 66,745,241

	 These funds cannot under any circumstances revert to the University; therefore, the financial statements 
of the University do not include the value of these assets. The following charts show the actual diversification 
of the VEBA investments.
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                                                                                        Participant Counts who have Health Care Coverage

	 Valuation Date	 6/30/10	 6/30/11	 6/30/12

	 Active and eligible to retire	 57	 62	 64
	 Active and not eligible to retire	 634	 571	 545

	 Total actives	 691	 633	 609

	 Inactives	 1,276	 1,335	 1,169
	 Average age					   
		  Actives	 53.0	 53.0	 53.5
 		  Inactives	 74.6	 74.8	 75.1

	 Average service actives	 16.0	 16.6	 19.7

Note 19. Other Post Employment Benefits

Plan Description
	 Beginning January 1, 2010, Indiana State University selected NEBCO, a division of AmWins Group Benefits 
to administer the post-65 retiree medical plan. This plan replaced the self-insured program for retirees with 
an insurance policy for which the University’s cost 
is based on premiums instead of claims. All retirees, 
after reaching the age of 65, are required to partici-
pate in the fully insured plan in order to retain the 
retirement medical benefit. The University’s cost is 
$236 per month for each plan participant including 
dental insurance coverage. Retirees pay $69 or $93 
per month directly to NEBCO, depending on the 
prescription drug plan option taken. The medical 
plan portion of the policy is guaranteed for two years, 
while the prescription policy is subject to yearly rate 
adjustments. This group of post-65 retirees retains 
dental coverage through Delta Dental of Indiana and 
life insurance through the Hartford Insurance. 
	 Retirees under the age of 65 will continue par-
ticipation in the Indiana State University Healthcare 
Plan for active employees until age 65 is attained. This 
plan is a single-employer defined benefit health care 
plan administrated by Cigna for medical coverage, 
Delta Dental of Indiana for dental coverage, Medco 
for prescription coverage, and Hartford Insurance 
for life insurance. The plan provides medical, dental and life insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses. 
Active employees are eligible for the plan provided they retire after attaining age 62 with at least 20 years of 
service. Surviving spouses may continue in the plan until remarriage or death. Employees hired after January 
1, 2005 or employees or their spouses who had not enrolled in the ISU health plan before January 1, 2005 
are not eligible for the plan. The Indiana State University Board of Trustees has the authority to establish and 
amend provisions to the University plan.

Funding Policy
	 The contribution requirements of plan members for the Indiana State University Retirement Healthcare 
Plan are established by the University’s Board of Trustees. The required contribution is based on projected 
pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an additional amount to fund the VEBA. For the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2012 the total contribution to the plan was $5.4 million, with the University contributing $4.1 million 

Inside the Scott College of Business Federal Hall
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Participants’ Monthly Contributions:
		  Retiree Only	 Retiree and Spouse
Under age 65
	 Salary under $27,000	 $	 126	 $ 	283
	 Salary greater than $27,000 and 
	       less than$77,000	 $ 154	 $	 363
	 Salary $77,000 and over 	 $ 	190	 $ 	410

Age 65 and over
(AmWins-Nebco fully insured)
	 Option 1	 $	 69	 $ 	138
	 Option 2	 $	 93	 $ 	186

for current premiums and $1 million contributed to the VEBA. Plan members receiving benefits contributed 
$0.3 million, based on the required contribution rates as follows:

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
	 The University’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the 
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with 
the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, 
is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) 
over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the University’s annual 
OPEB cost for fiscal years 2010, 2011, and 2012, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes 
in the University’s net OPEB obligation to the plan:

GASB 45 ARC and Annual Expense 	 2010	 2011	 2012

Annual required contribution	 $	 4,558,822	 $	 2,548,416	 $	 959,417
Interest on net OPEB obligation		   (68,205)		  (226,573)		  (426,217)
Adjustment to annual required contribution		  82,583		  274,338		  516,070
Annual OPEB cost	 $	 4,573,200	 $	 2,596,181	 $	 1,049,270

Contributions made		  (7,212,671)		  (5,923,577)		  (5,084,570)
Decrease in net OPEB obligation	 $	 (2,639,471)	 $	 (3,327,396)	 $	 (4,035,300)

Net OPEB obligation (asset), beginning of year	 $	 (1,136,746) 	 $	 (3,776,217)	 $	 (7,103,613)
Net OPEB obligation (asset), end of year	 $	 (3,776,217)	 $	 (7,103,613)	 $	 (11,138,913)

		  Percentage
	 Annual	 of Annual	 Net
Year	 OPEB	 OPEB Cost	 OPEB
Ending 	 Cost	 Contributed 	 Asset 

6/30/12	 $1,049,270	  530.00 %	 $	11,138,913
6/30/11	 $2,596,181	  228.20 %	 $	 7,103,613
6/30/10	 $4,573,200	  157.79 %	 $	 3,776,217

	 The University’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and 
the net OPEB asset for the fiscal years ending as follows:
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Three-Year Trend Information 	
	
	 Actuarial Valuation	 Accrued	 Underfunded AAL	 Funded	 Annual	 Unfunded AL as a 
	 of Plan Assets	 Liability	  (UAAL)	 Ratio	 Covered Payroll	 Percentage of Covered Payroll
	 (a)	 (b)	 (b-a)	 (a/b)	 (c)	 ((b-a)/c)	

6/30/2012	 $	 66,745,241	 $	 65,260,507	 $	 (1,484,734)	 102.3%	 $	 41,697,127	 (3.6%)
6/30/2011	 $	 65,730,650	 $	 75,312,342	 $ 	 9,581,692	 87.0%	 $	 40,482,648	 23.7%
6/30/2010	 $	 54,024,224	 $	 77,397,637	 $	 23,373,413	 70.0%	 $	 41,945,064	 55.7%

Funded Status and Funding Progress
	 As of June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 103.6 percent funded. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $65.3 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $66.7 million, 
resulting in an overfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $1.5 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll 
of active employees covered by the plan) was $41.7 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to covered payroll was 
103.6 percent.
	 Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assump-
tions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about 
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded 
status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision 
as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 
Schedule of Funding Progress, presented below, shows multiyear trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities 
for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
	 Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time 
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed 
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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Actuarial Assumptions

Valuation and measurement date	 June 30, 2012
Participant data	 June 30, 2011
Discount rate	 6%
Mortality 	 RP 2000 Mortality Table Healthy Lives Fully Generational projected
	 Using scale AA 

Health Care Trend Rates

                                                                                     Medical/Rx
	 FYE	 Pre-65	 Post-65	 Dental

	 2013	 9.00%	 6.75%	 6.00%
	 2014	 8.00%	 6.50%	 6.00%
	 2015	 7.50%	 6.25%	 6.00%
	 2016	 7.00%	 6.00%	 6.00%
	 2017	 6.50%	 5.75%	 6.00%
	 2018	 6.00%	 5.50%	 6.00%
	 2019	 5.50%	 5.25%	 6.00%
	 2020+	 5.00%	 5.00%	 6.00%
	
Methods

Actuarial cost method	 Projected unit credit with linear proration to decrement age
Assets method	 Market value
Amortization method	 30 year level dollar
Accounting method	 Unit credit
Actuarial gains/losses		 Reflected immediately in cost method

Note 20. Reclassifications
	 Reclassifications have been made to the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ending June 30, 2011 for 
comparative purposes. These reclassifications do not necessitate a restatement of prior periods, since they 
do not affect the net change in cash originally reported. These reclassifications are the result of the following:
•	 Payments to students for refunds of financial aid and scholarships, previously reported as a decrease in 

cash received for tuition and fees and auxiliary enterprises, was reclassified as payments to students. This 
resulted in an increase in cash received for tuition and fees and auxiliary enterprises and the addition of 
payments to students.

•	 A change has been made in the calculation of direct loan receipts that are disbursed to students as refunds. 
This did not result in a net change of cash provided by non-capital financing activities.

	 Prior to	 Reclassification	 After
	 Reclassification	 Amount	 Reclassification
Cash Flows From Operating Activities			 
	 Tuition and fees	 $	 47,525,305	 $	 4,189,083	 $	 51,714,388 
	 Auxiliary enterprises	 $	 30,247,664	 $	 2,191,117	 $	 32,438,781 
	 Payments to students	 $	 — 	 $	 (6,380,201)	 $	 (6,380,201)
			 
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities			 
	 Direct loan program receipts	 $	 28,815,236 	 $	 (8,295,775)	 $	 20,519,461 
	 Direct loan program disbursements	 $	 (28,815,236)	 $	 8,295,775	 $	 (20,519,461)
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Blackford
13 Jay

5 

Jefferson
10 

Switzerland
1 

Randolph
5 

Wayne
32 

Fayette
7 

Union
1 

Franklin
27 

Dearborn
23 Ripley

47 
Ohio

3 

Indiana 
(92 counties)

8,829

Out-of-State 
(47 states)

2,123

International 
(65 countries)

576

Total Enrollment
11,528

Home Counties of Indiana State Students 
(Fall 2011) Unaudited	



Additional copies of the 2012 Financial Report 

may be obtained from:

Office of the Controller

Parsons Hall, room P115

Indiana State University

Terre Haute, Indiana 47809

812-237-3513

www.indstate.edu/controller/

For Additional Information:

	 Admissions
	 Office of Admissions
	 John W. Moore Welcome Center
	 318 North Sixth Street
	 Indiana State University
	 Terre Haute, Indiana 47809
	 812-237-2121
	 admissions@indstate.edu
	
	 Alumni
	 Alumni Association
	 30 North Fifth Street
	 Terre Haute, Indiana 47809
	 1-800-258-6478
	 alumni@indstatefoundation.org

	 Foundation
	 ISU Foundation
	 30 North Fifth Street
	 Terre Haute, Indiana 47809
	 812-514-8400

University Officials
as of June 30, 2012

Daniel J. Bradley
President of the University

C. Jack Maynard
Provost and Vice President for
Academic Affairs

Diann McKee
Vice President for
Business Affairs, Finance, and 
University Treasurer

Carmen Tillery
Vice President for Student Affairs
and Dean of Students

John E. Beacon
Vice President for Enrollment 
Management, Marketing, and 
Communications

Board of Trustees
as of June 30, 2012

Randall Minas
Vice President
Culver, Indiana
Term expires 2016

Norman Lowery
Secretary
Terre Haute, Indiana
Term expires 2015

Edward A. Pease
Assistant Secretary
Terre Haute, Indiana
Term expires 2013

Robert Baesler
Terre Haute, Indiana
Term expires 2013

Tanya R. Bell
Brownsburg, Indiana
Term expires 2016

David Campbell
Indianapolis, Indiana
Term expires 2015

George E. Pillow
Indianapolis, Indiana
Term expires 2015

Alexus Tucker
Indianapolis, Indiana
Term expires 2013

Michael J. Alley
Non-Voting Special Advisor 
to the Board of Trustees
Carmel, Indiana






